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VISION, MISSION & OBJECTIVES

VISION

To be a globally respected organisation, focusing on inclusiveness by providing affordable and quality
healthcare solutions through continuous innovation.

MISSION

To accomplish the Corporate Vision, HLL Lifecare Ltd has outlined following Mission which focus on six
key areas:

Provide quality products and services meeting international standards.
Excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies and practices.

Customer delight and value creation through innovation, R & D, cost management and customer
care.

Focusing on human resource development to meet the needs of challenging business environment.

Be a socially committed corporate by maintaining highest standards of corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility.

Committed to the well-being of mother earth and future generations through green initiatives and
promotion of sustainable development.

OBJECTIVES

The company will strive to fulfill its vision/mission by

Annual Report 2017-2018

Attaining rapid growth and global levels of operations with high quality cost competitiveness and be
among the top three players in each main product category.

Create a culture of continuous innovation through R& D initiatives.
Strive to be the employer of choice in India with employee satisfaction levels of over 90%.

Be recognized as the leading social organization in the field of Reproductive and Women'’s
Healthcare with commitment to the society - a partner of choice for implementing all government
and multi-lateral initiatives in these segments.

Focussing on capacity building, skill development and infrastructural development for the benefit
of the marginalized and under privileged sections for their empowerment and inclusion in the
economic mainstream.

To place emphasis on environmental friendly activities that brings out conservation of resources
and waste management leading to top sustainable development.
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QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

e Provide affordable healthcare solutions focusing on inclusiveness, conforming to international
standards and regulatory requirements, enabling people lead healthy and happy lives

e Achieve organizational excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies
and practices in all areas

e Market products and services globally delivering highest value for customers through focus on
innovation, quality, R&D, cost management and customer relationship management

e Be an organization meeting highest standards in Corporate Governance and Corporate Social
Responsibility
SHE POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to protect environment, eliminate occupational hazards and
ensure safety of employees & subcontractors through sustainable growth:

e Monitoring and control of the impact of its activities, products and services on a continual basis;
e Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements;

e Adopting safe operating practices with an emphasis on social accountability.

e Facilitating employee training and their involvement;

e Pollution mitigation through adoption of best practices;

e Conserving materials, energy and reducing waste at source, and/encouraging usage of renewable
energy sources;

e Periodic review of safety, health and environment management system.

LAB QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

e Ensure reliable, consistent and traceable results of testing by using test methods complying to
national/international standards and by following good professional practices.

e Ensure that all personnel involved in the testing operations familiarize with the policies and
procedures of the management system conforming to ISO/IEC 17025: 2005 and implement the
same in their work.

e Continually improve the effectiveness of the management system
ENERGY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to buying and using energy in the most cost effective, efficient
and environmentally responsible way through:

e Monitoring, reviewing and controlling of energy management system activities and services on a
continual basis for reducing energy demand and increasing energy efficiency;

e Sourcing energy efficient products / services and encouraging usage of renewable energy sources;

e Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements related to energy use, consumption &
efficiency;

e Ultilizing the available information and resources to achieve the objectives and targets;
e Facilitating employee training and their involvement in energy management activities.

Annual Report 2017-2018 11
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CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH

Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is an honour and privilege for me to extend a very
warm welcome to each one of you to the 52" Annual General Meeting of your Company. The Annual
Report, including the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are already with
you and with your kind permission, | take them as read. | am happy to inform that the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India, after having reviewed the Company’s Accounts for the year ending 315t March, 2018,
have given a ‘NIL’ comment report.

Financial year 2017-18 was also a difficult year for your Company like previous year 2016-17. During the
last two years, the Company was not performing to the level expected due to various reasons and incurred
losses. Current year is also expected to be challenging, yet more promising than the previous years.
Taking note of the above situation, the Board of Directors had engaged the services of an external leading
consultant to prepare Turnaround Strategies for the Company and based on their recommendations,
detailed action plan has been prepared now and is being implemented with definite timelines and
responsibility. | am confident of an early return to healthy growth and profitability by the Company.

Under the backdrop, | share with you some of the achievements of your Company during the year
2017-18:

e 45 new AMRIT (Affordable and Reliable Implants for Treatment) outlets were established during
the period, taking the total number of AMRIT outlets to 140, across 22 States and has served more
than 88 lakh of patients.

e Established 93 Diagnostic Labs in 34 Districts of Maharashtra in association with NHM, Maharashtra
covering 2301 hospital centers.

e Established 27 Diagnostic Labs, covering 33 Districts in Assam in association with NHM, Assam,
covering 278 centers up to BPHC level.

e Established — 23 CT Scan Centers in UP in association with NHM, UP.

e Established “HLL HINDLABS MRI and CT SCAN CENTRE” at Sree Avittom Thirunal Hospital,
MCH, Thiruvananthapuram.

e WHO prequalification certification received for HLL's UNIPILL facility at Kanagala, Belgaum

e Installed 600 Sanitary Napkin Incinerators and supplied sanitary napkins as part of the SHE PAD
project in association with Kerala State Women Development Corporation(KSWDC)

e Over 3200 Sanitary Napkin Vending Machines and 3800 Incinerators have been installed in FY
2017-18

Our subsidiary companies - HLL Infra Tech Services Limited (HITES), Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals
Limited (GAPL) and Joint Venture Company LifeSpring Hospitals (LSH) are operating on profit and have
recorded profits during the year under report. Other subsidiaries - HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), HLL Medipark
Limited (HML) and HLL Mother & Childcare Limited (HMCCHL) are yet to start commercial operations.

Annual Report 2017-2018 13
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Toconclude, onbehalf ofthe Board of Directors, lwould like to convey my sincere thanks and acknowledgment
for the co-operation and support extended by various departments of Government of India, particularly by
the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. | take this opportunity to specially thank Madam Preeti Sudan,
Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare for her support and valuable guidance. | would also like to
thank my colleagues on the Board for their valuable guidance and contribution in steering the Company.

Your Company had complied with Corperate Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises.

| thank all present here once again for having attended today’s Annual General Meeting.

I now move the Agenda items as per notice for your consideration and approval.

Dr. R K Vats IAS

Chairman and Managing Director
[DIN: 01625253]
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No. HLL/CS/III-152(h)/18 31 September, 2018
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 52" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of HLL Lifecare Ltd. will
be held on Thursday, the 27" September 2018, at 11.00 a.m. at Committee Room, Room No.155-A, 1st
Floor, Nirman Bhavan, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toconsider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company (including audited consolidated
financial statements) for the year ended 31t March 2018 along with the Report of the Directors and
Statutory Auditors together with comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG)
thereon.

2. To authorize the Board of Directors to fix remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year 2018-19.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirement of Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to fix the remuneration to the
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year 2018-19”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. RATIFICATION OF COST AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any ,
of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made there under, the Company hereby fix remuneration
of ¥ 4,00,000/- [Rupees Four Lakh only] plus applicable Goods and Services Tax and reimbursement
of travelling & out of pocket expenses payable to M/s Jugal. K.Puri Associates, Cost Accountants,
Gurgaon (Firm Registration No: 000207), who were appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending 31st March 2019.

4. BORROW IN EXCESS OF PAID-UP CAPITAL AND FREE RESERVES

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Special resolution:

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable provisions, if any consent of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded
to the Board of Directors for borrowing from time to time any sum or sum(s) of money by way of
cash credit, loan, overdraft, discounting of bills, operating of letters of credit, for standing guarantee
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or counter-guarantee and any other type of credit line or facility up to an amount not exceeding
$1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees One thousand Crore) (including the money already borrowed by the
Company) on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit, notwithstanding that the money
to be borrowed together with the money already borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary
loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business) and remaining
un-discharged at any given time, exceed the aggregate, for the time being, of the paid up capital of
the Company and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose.

Place: Thiruvananthapuram

Date: 03.9.2018
By the order of the Board

[Company Secretary& SVP (CAS)]

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and on a
poll to vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies,
in order to be valid and effective, must be lodged with the registered office of the company not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of a Government
Company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). In terms of Section
142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration of auditors has to be fixed by the company in the
annual general meeting or in such manner as the company in annual general meeting may determine.
Necessary resolution has been placed before the Members for authorising the Board of directors to fix
up the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2018-19.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies, Act, 2013 with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, setting out the material facts in respect of Special
Business is annexed.

To

Shareholders
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets out
matter in relation to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying notice:

Item No: 3

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant in
practice. The Board of Directors of your Company in their 264" Board meeting held on 13th August, 2018
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s Jugal.K.Puri Assoicates, Gurgaon, Cost Accountants,
Thiruvananthapuram for the financial year ending March 31, 2019. In accordance with the provisions of
Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the
Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing ordinary resolution for ratification of
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2019. None of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the
aforesaid ordinary resolution. The Board recommends the aforesaid resolution for your approval.

Item No: 4

The Board of Directors of your Company in their 262nd Board meeting held on 27" March, 2018 has
approved the proposal to enhance overall credit facility upto ¥ 1,000 Cr. Earlier also the maximum
borrowing limit was ¥ 1,000 Cr., as approved by the shareholders. Under the erstwhile Section 293(1)

(d) of the Companies Act 1956, the Board of Directors of a Company could, with the consent of the
shareholders obtained by an ordinary resolution, borrow monies, apart from the temporary loans obtained
from the Companies Bankers in the ordinary course of business, in excess of the aggregate of paid-up
capital and free reserves of the Company. Under the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013, which was made effective from September 12, 2013, the above power can be exercised by the
Board only with consent of the shareholders obtained by Special Resolution. As such it is necessary to
obtain fresh approval of the shareholders by means of Special Resolution.

The Directors accordingly recommend the resolutions in Item No.4 for your approval as a Special resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relative is in any way concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above referred resolution.

By order of the Board

[COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP (CAS)]
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|. DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2017-18)

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2018 is summarised below:

(z in lacs)
Standalone Consolidated

Financial particulars 201718 2016-17 201718 2016-17

Revenue from operations 1,07,538.27 1,05,434.98 1,21,754.07 1,16,086.77
Other income 1,316.49 1,035.73 557.68 1,190.29
Total income 1,08,854.76 1,06,470.71 1,22,311.75 1,17,277.06
Profit/(Loss) before tax (6,486.94) (4,059.51) (8,770.08) (3,144.70)
Tax expense 471.40 (1,521.31) 1,767.17 (927.93)
Profit /(Loss) for the year (6,958.34) (2,538.21) (10,537.25) (2,216.77)

2. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share capital of the Company as on 31t March, 2018 stood at ¥300.00 Cr. as the same
of previous year and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital as on 31s*March, 2018 was
% 290.42 Cr. without any change.

3. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY vis-a-vis MoU TARGETS

Your Company’s performance has been rated as “Fair” in terms of MoU signed with the Government of
India for the year 2016-17. A statement showing performance of the Company vis-a-vis MoU target for the
financial year 2017-18 is enclosed as Annexure | which forms part of this report.

4. DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of provisions
of Chapter V - Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

5. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given guarantee, not given any loans or guarantees
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments
made by Company are given in the notes to the financial statements.

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length
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basis and were in ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant transactions with
Related Parties during the financial year 2017-18 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.
Suitable disclosures as required under I"AS-24 have been made in Note No.2.34 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Particulars of contract/arrangements/transactions made with related parties, pursuant to Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed form AOC-2 is appended as Annexure Il which forms part
of this report.

7. SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

As on March 31, 2018, your Company has five subsidiary companies and one joint venture Company.
Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint
venture companies in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements. The summary of performance
of the subsidiary and joint venture companies is provided below:

7.1 HLL Biotech Limited (HBL)

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), the wholly owned subsidiary company has completed its Sixth year of
incorporation on 12" March 2018. The authorized share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2018
stood at ¥ 285.00 Cr which is same as the previous year and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity
share capital as on 31st March 2018 stands at ¥274.89 Cr.

HBL received manufacturing license on 5" February 2018 for LPV and Hepatitis B products as a
manufacturer under labelling and packaging operations.

HBL successfully obtained Test license for RTF bulk for LPV (Diphtheria, Tetanus, pertussis (whole cell)
Hepatitis - B (rDNA) and Haemophilus Influenza type B conjugate vaccine). HBL established its marketing
network in Tamil Nadu and Kerala for Liquid Pentavalent Vaccine (PENTAHIL) and Hepatitis B (HIVAC-B)
vaccine. The efforts of the marketing team has facilitated HBL make inroads into well-established hospitals
like CMC, Vellore, Stedford, Be Well, Amrita and Iqraa Multi specialty Hospital, Calicut.

On Quality operations/Quality Assurance, HBL had developed and established “Quality Management
System” by implementing High level policy documents and Standard operating procedures across all
functional departments.

During the year, HBL also established an independent Quality Control unit equipped with qualified lab
equipments having experienced and trained personnel to carry out testing for all incoming raw materials,
packing materials, intermediate products and final products.

HBL'’s plan for the year 2018-19 includes manufacturing of LPV at IVC through naked vial concept and to
supply to GOI for Universal Immunisation Programme. Facility Validation and readiness of manufacturing
blocks like Rabies Bulk and BCG are expected to be completed.On developmental front JE vaccine will
complete immunisation studies and will be ready with pre —clinical trial material.

7.2 Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd.(GAPL)

The authorized and paid up share capital of GAPL is ¥ 25.00 Cr. and ¥ 19.02 Cr. respectively without any
change as on 31stMarch 2018. The shareholding of HLL Lifecare Limited (holding company) in GAPL is
74% and balance 26% is held by EDC Limited.

During the year under review, the Revenue from operations dropped by 28% as compared with the
previous year. The net profit of the Company was less by 85% as compared with the year before.
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Full automatic Tablet Manufacturing Facility

GAPL proposes to set up a new fully automatic tablet manufacturing facility with WHO GMP certification
for manufacture of tablets. The estimated capacity of the new tablet manufacturing line could be 300
million tablets per shift per annum. This facility shall cater to the requirement of institutional customers with
bulk quantity requirements in short span of time. Estimated investment for the project is ¥ 8.34 Crores and
annual turnover expected for the year 2020-21 is ¥19.37 Cr.

Cephalosporin project 2020-21

To enhance production capacity and expand product range GAPL plans to setup state-of-the-art
Cephalosporin range of formulation manufacturing facility in the category of Tablets and capsules. Further,
a new DPP line would be included in the facility with WHO GMP compliance as the existing facility is
obsolete.

The new facility will be designed to meet current international GMP compliance requirements with the
intension to explore the possibility of formulation exports to non-regulated as well as regulated markets.

The investment for the facility would be around ¥ 38 Cr. In the first year of production18.2 million tablets
and 7 million Capsules is planned with estimated revenue of ¥12.76 Cr. in 2021-22.

Upgrading existing facility

GAPL plans to upgrade the Quality Control Laboratory to meet current regulatory compliances and
strengthen in-house sample testing capabilities.

In order to meet the current GMP Guidelines and to enhance the shift productivity, it is planned to replace
the old machines at Allopathic manufacturing facility in phased manner.

7.3 HLL Infra Tech Services Ltd. (HITES)

HITES was incorporated on 3™ April 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Limited to carry on
the business of providing services viz., Infrastructure Development, Facilities Management, Procurement
Consultancy and allied services, foreseeing the enormous scope of business in these segments.

During the year under review, HITES achieved growth in Turnover and Profit, besides achieving many
milestones and sealing new heights. The Turnover of the Company increased to ¥86.32 Crores as against
last year’s Turnover of ¥ 36.55 Crores. The profit also increased to ¥11.25 Crores as against the previous
year profit of ¥ 4.08 Crores.

Expansion of healthcare sector is one of the most inspiring success stories of modern era. Development
of health care sector always plays a key role in building the nation and indeed emerged as one of the
leading sector of the Indian economy. Taking advantage of this, HITES utilized the opportunities and
shown remarkable improvement in business development.

HITES has also started providing service to private sector clients. HITES entered into an agreement
with Cosmopolitan Hospital, Trivandrum for expansion of their facilities at Trivandrum and MoU with M/s
Techno Global Ltd Kolkata, under which HITES company will render consultancy support to establish
medical colleges, nursing colleges, para-medical and medical based campuses of Techno India University.

HITEShas entered into MOU with M/s KITCO Ltd. Kerala for strategic alliance to jointly undertake
execution of healthcare infrastructure projects. HITES developed online portal for specification of medical
equipment, where client can access the medical equipment specifications online.

During the year, HITES has been awarded with the phase Il procurement of medical hospital for the
Republic of Seychelles.
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7.4 HLL Medipark Ltd. (HML)

HLL Medipark Ltd was incorporated on 20" December 2016, as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL
Lifecare Ltd, for the implementation of Medipark in Chengalpattu in Tamil Nadu. Medipark is envisaged
as an exclusive industrial cluster with the state-of-the art infrastructure and integrated eco system for the
manufacture of medical devices and equipments along with knowledge management infrastructure in a
sprawling 330 acres of land. The Medipark will be a one-stop facility for manufacturing units and would
stimulate innovation and R&D, develop new technologies, prototyping and commercialization, quality
assurances through its accredited laboratory & calibration centres and become a hub for the sector in the
country. The project is aimed to strengthen the “Make- in- India” drive of the Government of India thereby
reducing the dependence on imports and create a strong base for the growth of indigenous manufacturing.

Medipark is expected to attract various investors in the medical devices and equipment sector. Apart from
boosting the investment in the country and providing affordable medical devices, it will usher a new era of
affordable health care delivery in the country and also would enhance employment opportunities.

The statutory approvals are received for the commencement of construction activities and the financial
closure is in the final phase with SBI funding the project to the tune of ¥ 74 Cr.

The authorized and paid-up share capital of HML as on 31st March 2018 is ¥ 50 lacs and ¥10.01 lacs
respectively. During May 2018 the authorized share capital was increased to ¥13.00 Cr.to facilitate the
Company to raise euity capital for project finance.

Department of Commerce, GOI accorded approval for the grant support of ¥ 9.56 Cr for the EMI/EMC
laboratory, which is part of knowledge management infrastructure and will be a key differentiator of the
Medipark.

7.5 HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited [HMCCHL]

In December 2016, Director General (Medical & Health Services), Government of Uttar Pradesh had
issued a tender notification inviting proposals for Operationalization of 100 bedded Mother & Child
Hospital (MCH) wings at 20 district hospitals in Uttar Pradesh (the project). The project has to be executed
on EFOMT (Equip, Finance, Operate, Maintain and Transfer) basis, wherein the successful bidder has to
finance, equip and operate the MCH wings of District hospitals for a period of 10 years.

Out of 20 Hospitals envisaged under the SPV there are 13 Category A and 7 Category B hospitals to be
managed by HLL Lifecare Limited [HLL] /Special Purpose Vehicle formed by HLL. Category A hospitals
will have to provide full range of maternal and child healthcare services including facilitation of normal
deliveries, complicated deliveries and neo-natal care. Category B Hospitals will have to provide services
concerning only complicated deliveries. Basic/Normal delivery cases will be attended by DH in Category
B centres. The time-line stipulated for project execution is 270 days from the signing of Agreement.

Accordingly, HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Ltd. was incorporated on 1st August, 2017 as a wholly
owned subsidiary Company of HLL Lifecare Limited. Financial year 2017-18 is the first financial year for
HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited [HMCCHL] and the accounting period is 1.8.2017 to 31.3.2018.
There is no business operations during the period.

7.6 LifeSpring Hospitals (P) Limited [LSH]

LifeSpring has been in existence for almost 10 years. During these periods, LifeSpring has evolved a
unique model for providing high quality maternal and child health care at affordable rates for low- income
population group, which meets a social objective while being sustainable.

The major developments in the external environment during the year under review as mentioned below:
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Government scheme of cash incentives (to the tune of 12000 in case of a Male baby and 313000
in case of a Female baby) for pregnant women meeting 4 ANC checkups and delivering in a
Government hospital.

Mushrooming of small private hospitals in the communities, resulting in dispersal of Customers.
In view of the developments LSH undertook the following initiatives:

Strengthening the outreach and consolidating the Community Extension Centres (CEC). Now,
there are ten (10) CECs.

Focus on capturing value in ANC checkup. The metric of “Percentage of antenatal women converted
to deliveries” was discarded and the new metric of “Number of total unique women carried in the
month” was adopted.

Increasing focus on non-delivery in-patient services to the women. This measure has the potential
to increase the occupancy in hospital, engage General Surgeons who can contribute to reduction
in clinical risks associated with Obstetrics, and also contribute to overall increase in revenue.

Increase service provision in the newborn care by providing double surface phototherapy service
for babies having neonatal jaundice.

Introduced a Finance scheme to the customers, who cannot afford company’s prices for its services
and are willing to pay the service prices in installments. The company has tied-up with Bajaj Finserve
to facilitate the availing of finance facility by the customers.

In addition, to laterally expand its services and prepare itself to serve the next level of economic
segment, LSH has partnered with other agencies to provide the following services:

a) Infertility treatment upto IUI.
b) Stem Cell Banking.

LSH also continued the strategy of engaging partners to provide Ultrasound Machines and
Radiologist services at its hospitals to lower costs and risks associated with compliance of Pre-
Conception & Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques Act 1994. New machines were put up in Alwal and
Kukatpally. This not only led to improved customer satisfaction but also to increase in revenue from
USG.

The initiatives mentioned above has yielded the following results:

Maintaining or increasing the monthly revenue of the company despite a decline in the number of
deliveries.

Stabilizing and growing the total number of pregnant women served per month.

With the help of these initiatives, LSH closed the financial year with an after tax profit of ¥ 46.37 lakhs.
Overall, LSH helped 53,539 women to deliver their babies since inception in February, 2008.

8 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has adopted “IND AS” with effect from 1%t April 2016. The Financial Statements in
accordance with the Ind As on Consolidated Financial Statements is provided in the Annual Report. The
Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, along with related information are available for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company, and also at the registered offices of the respective subsidiary
companies during working hours.
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9 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

Your Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls, commensurate with the nature of
its business, size, scale and complexity of operations which ensures that all transactions are approved
and authorized as per Delegation of Powers (DOP), recorded and reported correctly, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records in SAP driven environment, timely preparation of reliable financial
statements are maintained and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition. The Company, being a Public Sector Enterprise, is subject to Comptroller and Auditor
General (CAG) audit also. Significant audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are reported to the
Audit Committee.

10 VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism
to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the
year in this regard.

11 RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adopted a robust Risk Management Policy approved by the Board of Directors and
established an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system that engages with all the business verticals
for risk assessment and ensures that the risk mitigation plans are in place.

12 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status and operations of the Company.

13 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and on the date of this report.

14 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the
Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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15 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information regarding particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified under
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable as
none of the employees of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the stipulated limit, during
the year under review.

16 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2018 in
form MGT 9 is appended as Annexure lll to the Board’s Report.

17 AUDITORS
17.1 Statutory Auditors

The observations/qualifications made in the Auditors’ Report read together with relevant notes thereon
are self-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies
Act,2013.

17.2 Cost Auditors

M/s. Jugal K. Puri & Associates, Cost Accountants, New Gurgaon was appointed as Cost Auditors for the
financial year 2017-18 to conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the Company in respect of
the various products prescribed under Companies (Cost Records &Audit Rules), 2014. Pursuant to the
provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members
are requested to consider the ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

17.3 Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. BVR &
Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the year ended 31%tMarch, 2018. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR3 forms part of the
Annual Report as Annexure IV to the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

18 PROCUREMENT OF GOODS FROM MSMEs

During the year 2017-18, the Company has procured goods of value of 2 6,676 lakhs from Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises (MSMESs) out of the total procurement of ¥ 27,350 lakhs which is 24.41% against
the target of 20%. The Company has also conducted 6 Vendor Development Programmes for MSMEs.

19 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/
OUTGO

The particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo, as prescribed under sub-section 3 (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure-A, which forms part of this report.

20 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY

HLL has been an early adopter of CSR initiatives. HLL implements CSR programmes directly and through
its implementing agencies such as Hindustan Latex Family Planning and Promotion Trust [HLFPPT] and
HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society. During the year the Company has undertaken many CSR initiative
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programmes. In compliance with Section135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has established Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee. Statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee and Annual
Report on CSR activities of the Company pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2017-18 forms part of this Report as Annexure B.

21 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of good corporate governance and has
taken adequate steps to adhere to all stipulations laid down in DPE O.M. No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated
14-05-2010 issued by Department of Public Enterprises. The Company has obtained a Certificate from the
Statutory Auditors M/s. K Varghese &Co., Chartered Accountants confirming compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance. Forming part of this report as Annexure V.

22 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in a separate section
forming part of this report.

23 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The following changes took place on the Board of the Company:
23.1 Cessation
The following persons have ceased as Directors from the Company:
e On 31 May, 2018 Shri R P Khandelwal has superannuated as Director (Finance).

e On 23" April, 2018 Shri Lav Agarwal, IAS, Joint Secretary in the Ministry has ceased as Government
Nominee Director.

e On 17" July, 2018 Ms. Aradhana Johri, IAS (Retd.) Ex-Secretary to the Government of India has
ceased as Independent Director.

The Board of Directors places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable guidance extended by the
above Directors during their association with the Company.

23.2 Appointment

e On 7" November, 2017 Dr R K Vats IAS was entrusted additional charge of the post of Chairman
& Managing Director of HLL.

e On 237 April, 2018 Ms Preeti Pant, Joint Secretary in the Ministry was appointed as Government
Nominee Director.

e On 21t August, 2018 Dr Geeta Sharma was appointed as Director (Finance)
23.3 Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company shall have at least
one Woman Director on the Board. During the year under review, your Company had Ms. Aradhana Johri
IAS (Retd.), Ex-Secretary to the Government of India and Smt. Vijaya Srivastava,Special Secretary & FA
Ministry of Health & Family Welfare [MoHFW] as women Directors on the Board of the Company.
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23.4 Committees of the Board

Your Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable
laws and statutes. There have been no situations where the Board has not accepted any recommendation
of the Audit Committee. The Company has following Committees of the Board:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

4. Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

A detailed note with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of relevant
committees are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance section which forms part of this Annual
Report.

23.5 Declaration from Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from each Independent Director as per the requirement of Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors meet the
criteria of independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

23.6 Board Meetings held during the year

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the meetings
are furnished in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.

24 POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

The Company has constituted Compliance Committee as per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 — an Act to provide protection against
sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment. Your Company firmly believes that sexual harassment results in violation of the fundamental
rights of a woman to equality under articles 14 and 15 of the Constitution of India and the right to life
and live with dignity under article 21 of the constitution and the right to practice any profession or to
carry on any occupation, trade or business which includes a right to safe environment free from Sexual
Harassment. Redressal Committees have been constituted in all units of the Company. Meetings are
conducted on regular intervals.

The Committee conducted various programmes in an effort to promote the well-being of all lady employees
of the Company. A talk on “Role of emotional intelligence in the holistic growth of women by Smt Rina
Vivek, Vice Chairperson, Southern Region, CIl on 21 08. 2017, Session on age related gynecological
issues by the doctors of Government Ayurveda College, on 20.12.2017 were the programs conducted for
the benefit of women employees. International Women’s Day was celebrated in a befitting manner and
the Chief Guest was Smt. Nishanthini IPS.

Your Company received two complaints regarding Sexual Harassment during the financial year 2017-18.
Both the complaints were dealt with appropriately.

25 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The SAP application implemented in the company was made GST compliant as per the rules and guidelines
of GOI. In order to have greater control over tracking of payments as well as to reduce administrative cost
on reconciliation as well as payment processing, the company has implemented online vendor payment
process through Host to Host Integration with SAP and Bank’s portal.
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26 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
Achievements:

1. New 5 step process for Ormeloxifene APl manufacturing has been developed and validated at KFB
plant. Annual saving of ¥ 2.5 crore for 1500kg API

2. Received Test Manufacturing License for Graphene Condom production for clinical trials.

3. Received funding from Bio-Technolog Industry Research Assistance Council (BIRAC) for conducting
clinical trial study on Ormeloxifene 120mg for breast cancer indications.

4. Measures identified for optimization and reduction of cost of packing materials for products. Task
assigned as per HLL Board requirement. Report submitted on Nov 2017.

5. 12 month long term and 6 months accelerated studies completed successfully for UPA/ Cu IUS
6. Phase I/ 1l clinical trial of Coated Copper T completed successfully in 10 different sites across India.
Patents filed by CRDC:

1. Indian patent filed for “A process for the synthesis of non-steroidal oral contraceptive and its
pharmaceutically active acceptable salts”. Patent Application No: 201841000652

Technology Transferred:

1. HCG rapid diagnostic test cards-Transferred to HLL MFG

2. Malaria Rapid diagnostic test cards-Transferred to HLL MFG
27 QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

During the year, the Company’s manufacturing units/divisions continue to possess the certifications
mentioned below:

e [SO 9001:2015 certification for manufacturing units at Peroorkada, Irapuram and Kanagala for
Quality Management System.

e |ISO 9001:2008 certification for manufacturing units at Akkulam, Kochi & Manesar for Quality
Management System.

e |ISO 13485:2016 certification for manufacturing units at Peroorkada and Irapuram for Medical
Devices Quality Management System.

e [SO 13485: 2003 certification for manufacturing units at Akkulam, Kochi, Kanagala and Manesar for
Medical Devices Quality Management System.

e [SO 14001:2015 certification for manufacturing units at Peroorkada, Akkulam, Kochi and Kanagala
for efficient Environment Management System.

e OHSAS 18001:2007 certification for units at Akkulam, Peroorkada, Kanagala and Kochi for
Occupational Health and Safety.

e [SO 50001:2011 Certification for units at Akkulam and Peroorkada for Energy Management System.

e NABL accreditation for finished products testing laboratory at Peroorkada Unit, Thiruvananthapuram
in accordance with ISO 17025:2005.
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e CE Mark for Male Condoms at Peroorkada and Kochi Units.

e CE Mark for Female Condoms produced at Kochi Unit.

e CE Mark for Blood Bags produced at Akkulam Unit.

e CE mark for Pregnancy Test Cards for professional use produced at Manesar Unit.

e SABS Mark for Female Condoms produced at Kochi unit and the manufacturing site is WHO/
UNFPA prequalified.

e NF Mark & SABS Mark for Male Condoms produced at Peroorkada Unit.

e Peroorkada Factory also meets a wide range of international quality specifications/standards/
guidelines such as I1ISO 4074:2015, ASTM D 3492, GOST-4645-81 and the manufacturing site is
WHO/UNFPA prequalified.

e NABL accreditation for medical testing at HINDLABS, New Delhiin accordance with ISO 15189:2012.
28 HUMAN RESOURCES
28.1 Human Resources Development

Your company gives high priority for development of human resources employed by them. During the
year under review, the company had organized various training programmes involving 714 man-days for
executives and 2665 man-days for workmen.

28.2 Industrial Relations

The year 2017-18 witnessed harmonious industrial relations in the company as in the previous years, and
no man-days lost on account of labour unrest.

28.3 Reservation for SC/ST/OBC and physically challenged

The company continues to follow the presidential directives in respect of reservation to SC/ST/OBC
Communities and efforts are taken to fulfill the directives in Recruitment and Promotion. Serious and
focused effort was also taken for Special Recruitment Drives. The representation of SC/ST/OBC/Persons
with Disabilities categories in the total employee strength as on 1.4.2018 is given below:

Description No. of employees
Representation of : SC 259
ST 78
OBC 425
Persons with Disabilities 51
Other Categories 846
Total Strength of Employees 1659

Status of implementation of posts reserved for persons with disabilities in HLL Lifecare Limited as on
01.04.2018

No. of Post reserved for PwDs No. of Post currently held by PwDs
Total number Locomotor- Locomotor
Group of posts identi-  Blindness or Hearing disabilityor ~ Blindness or Hearing disabilty or
fied low vision impaired cerebral low vision impaired
identified cerebral palsy
A&B 401 4 4 4 1 0 9
C&D 1258 12 13 13 4 10 27
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29 IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

Your Company has complied with the provisions made in the Official Language Act of 1963 , OL Rules of
1976, Presidential Directions, Annual Programme issued by the Government of India with utmost devotion.

99 employees have been trained in Hindi Workshops, Unicode training, Refresher programmes and
induction programme during the year in order to encourage employees to do their work in Hindi. Technical
Seminar was conducted towards familiarizing with advanced online facilities such as Google voice typing
,Google translate and other facilities developed by the Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home
Affairs, New Delhi. Your Company also extended these facilities among the college students, college
teachers by way of Seminars as part of propagation of Hindi. In addition to this, Hindi Mela, Viswa Hindi
Diwas, Hindi Diwas, Hindi Fortnight Celebrations were organized in the company for creating a conducive
environment in the company. The Fortnight Celebration was inaugurated by the honourable Minister for
Port, Kerala Shri Kadannapally Ramachandran. Various competitions were conducted separately for the
employees, children of employees, top Management and students of Government schools adopted under
CSR activities in connection with Hindi Fortnight Celebrations. A Seminar on “The Role of Official Language
Hindi in the Perspective of Globalization” was conducted for college students. Various incentives and
awards were instituted in the Company among Units, Sections such as Rolling shield for Units, Leading
section Award , Awards for learning Hindi , writing articles, for doing work in Hindi and an overall citation
for an employee who contribute more in the field of Official Language Implementation in the Company. OL
inspection was conducted in all the Units in order to identify the best implemented Unit, section employee
respectively.

Your Company is publishing OL Magazine ‘Samanvaya’ half yearly ‘Corporate News’ the newsletter of
the company in Hindi’ and ‘Moments’ the photo newsletter in bilingual in every month. ‘Samanvaya’ was
adjudged as the best magazine by the TOLIC(Undertaking). Your Company is also the convener of Town
Official Language Implementation Committee (U), Thiruvananthapuram and various programmes were
conducted also under the auspices of TOLIC in order to propagate Official Language Hindi in the member
offices. Hindi Unicode Training, Competitions for member offices and their children, Inter TOLIC Official
Language Conference, Kavi Sammelan, Techincal Seminar for college teachers, Technical Seminar for
College students, and member offices, career guidance programme for college students were organised.
Hindi Magazine of TOLIC ‘Thapasya’ was also released during the year. TOLIC (U) was bagged Southern
Regional Award instituted by the Ministry of Home Affairs consecutively for the second year of the formation
of the TOLIC.

30 CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

Your company has a Corporate Communication Department which act as a convergence media agency for
the different business divisions across the organization. As the world of communication has gone through
tremendous transformation, with new developments and innovations, the Corporate Communications
Department has adopted innovative initiatives with a vision to position HLL as a Global Healthcare
Delivery Company that upholds highest values in terms of quality products and services at affordable
prices, for the benefit of the global community. The division has a well developed in-house design platform
which provides customized creative, design solution for all communication material emanating from the
Organisation.

In order to facilitate dissemination of information and to create positive image of the organisation,
your Company has been regularly liaisoning with local public and influence groups, supporting local
and national events, providing press releases to the media and online media, placing write-ups in top
publications, publishing corporate brochures on various activities of the Company, developing and
telecasting Corporate Videos and regularly organizing press meetings to announce the developments
of the Company. In addition to releasing corporate advertisements, your Company has been regularly
updating developments and events in Social media platforms.
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S SEEel ST R T
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32. |ehar
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HF T TAUAUS % SATHRIRET i et R T SR R e § SAthmdl R U ST gET 3R SR 3R
SR 3
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31 HLL MANAGEMENT ACADEMY(HMA)

HLL Management Academy (HMA) was registered as a Society under the Travancore Cochin Literary,
Scientific and Charitable Societies Registration Act, 1955. During 2017-18, H M A had built functional
verticals of Recruitment Services, Skill Development Courses, Management and Staff Development
Training Programmes, Academic Programmes / Courses and Research & Consultancy Projects.

The major activities of the HMA during the year under review include the following:

e 32 Management Development Programmes (MDP) covering 518 executives. There was also
representation from other organizations like Central and State PSU’s, Government agencies and
the private sector.

e 5 Staff Development Programmes covering 57 employees.

e Partnered with IL& FS Skill Development Corporation Limited 522 students have undergone the
course in 19 batches out of which 260 passed the course.195 got employment in various hospitals.

e HMA conducted one General Duty Assistant (GDA) batch with 15 students who have completed the
exam and out of which 7 students got employment.

e 5th International Training program on “Procurement Management in Healthcare sector” was
conducted from 13"-17" of November 2017. 20 participants from various state and central
organizations and World Bank, from Srilanka and Cambodia also participated in the program.

e 13 Monthly Think Tank Executive Lecture Series were conducted in 2017-2018 with eminent
personalities from various fields giving lectures in different topics.

e Online PDPP course in association with World Bank is being conducted since 2014 with 146
candidates enrolling. 32 candidates have completed the course till date.

e Post Graduate Diploma Course in Clinical Engineering and Management (PGDCEM) and Advanced
Diploma Course in Clinical Engineering and Management (ADCEM) for graduate engineers and
diploma holders were conducted.

e HMA had conducted Train —the-Trainer’s programme in association with [IM — Kozhikode to develop
internal faculty members from HLL.

e HMAhas got affiliations from Health Sector Skill Council (HSSC), Rubber Skill Development Council
(RSDC), Additional Skill Acquisition Programme (ASAP) and National Urban Livelihoods Mission
(NULM) for conducting skill development courses at HMA campus.

32 VIGILANCE

Vigilance Department strives to ensure probity & integrity at all levels in the company by providing
necessary guidance, supervision and relevant assistance to its various units/offices spread across the
country. Conducting periodic vigilance inspections, investigations / enquires, system study etc. are carried
out to ensure adherence to the existing rules and regulations of the company. Dissemination of preventive
vigilance advice and system improvement directives to all stakeholders are other major functions executed.
The Competent Authority is kept apprised of Vigilance findings from time to time, to ensure appropriate
corrective actions wherever necessary.

The Vigilance Awareness Week 2017 was observed by units and offices of the company and its subsidiaries
from 30" October to 4" November 2017. Shri T P Senkumar, IPS, former Director General of Police, Kerala
Police addressed officials of HLL at JNCMCW Hall, Peroorkada Factory on 30.10.2017 and gave insight
into a range of issues and efforts to be taken by individuals in curbing corruption. Shri Balram Kumar
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Upadhyay IPS, Inspector General, Kerala Police while addressing officials of HITES / HLL at Corporate
Head Office, HLL Lifecare Limited, Trivandrum spoke of efforts taken to tackle corruption and said that
citizen needed to take persistent efforts to follow law, rules and procedures.

33 RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has implemented Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005, which enhances the common
citizens by providing access to information with a view to enlighten them on the accountability and
transparency practised in the Company. The Company has always endeavoured to ensure that various
enabling provisions of the RTI Act, 2005 are implemented in letter and spirit.

The number of RTI applications received and disposed off during year 2017-18 is given below:

No. of RTI applications pending as on 1st April 2017 05
No. of RTI applications received during year2017-18 90
No. of RTI applications disposed off during year 2017-18 89
No. of RTI applications pending as on 31st March 2018 06

Apart from RTI applications, the Company also received 09 First Appeals under the provisions of the RTI
Act, 2005 against the decision of CPIO, which too were duly attended to and appropriately disposed off
by the First Appellate Authority.

34 AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
During the year under review, your Company received the following awards and recognitions:

a. HLL PFT was Awarded Second Position from “Kerala State Pollution Control Board” on 05™ June
2017 in the Category "Large Industry” for substantial and sustained efforts in Pollution Control and
for initiatives in Environment Protection

b. HLL PFT was Awarded First Position from Kerala State Factories and Boilers on 04th March 2018
in category-Very Large scale industries

c. HLL PFT was Awarded First Position for Outstanding Safety Performance from “National Safety
council on 04" March 2018 in the Category "Very Large Industry“ achieving lowest frequency rate
of accidents in the year 2017

d. HLL PFT was awarded Commendation award from the Department of Power Govt. of Kerala
through ANERT in the category of Industrial units for achievements towards the utilization of
renewable energy for the year 2017

e. HLL AFT has Qualified CECMED (Cuban Health & Registration Authorities) audit for Suture, Blood
Bag & Copper T.

f. HLL AFT has Qualified Prequalification audit by Brazilian Health Surveillance Agency Anvisa for
Blood Bags

35 APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to make a special mention of the valuable guidance, support and co-operation
your Company has been receiving from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare and other Ministries of
Government of India and look forward to their continued support in all future endeavors.

The Directors express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Principal
Director of Commercial Audit & Ex-officio Member of Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors,
Secretarial Auditors and Internal Auditors for the co-operation and support extended by them.
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The Directors take this opportunity to thank the Company’s bankers, regulatory authorities, customers,
vendors, consultants, technology licensors, contractors and other business associates and trading
partners for their continued support and confidence reposed in the Company.

Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DR R K VATS IAS
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
[DIN:01625253]
13" August, 2018,
New Delhi.
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Ryt @t Ruie & ey
ST tafE 2013  arT 134(3) (W) % AR S o 2014 (F/@n) & 9 gied goer 31 7 2018 &t gEred
Y HieTT el @ NUiE & 9T a9l €1

W & (Frm 2 39)
faaRoT 2016-17 2017-18
fastett 3R g
fartett
TR T (FFR)F sty T 2,33,20,580.00 2,40,30,440.00
wT () 14,39,50,733.00 15,32,10,799.00
R / I () 6.17 6.38
ot S 4,15,335.40 3,26,757.00
Scqifed e (F Sfeeryg ) 1,49,435.00 1,16,285.00
T UF S dof o1 309 (ferex) 2.78 2.81
ScuTtea e /ferer (& sfeerg wa/ferex) 21.60 21.15
AT/ e () T T T T
Y A SR FRT T T o
AT
TS TF St
IRATT (A ) 2,826.45 2,617.00
T (3) 9,53,71,781.78 1,07,74,730.90
T/FHE (R) 33,780.94 40,800.00
T o
i (fetex) 16,20,564.00 16,39,652.00
wr () 4,26,73,896.54 4,68,93,219.00
T/FHE () 26.33 28.60
IR o A gfe 1 3TN
FUSH
e (IITAET 3157)- 3cue (Hiees) 1,890.03 1,819.13
fostett (& efeerg we)ufa gercter eteg (W 8418) 8,910.80 8,148.65
T o (Tet feteR) i seretet 31 (W 6.19) 2.49 2.52
Rkl N T AR FEH
TA T SH(TH 2Y) Ui IITeIeT 2155 2.20 1.97
HIR-2T
SIS et TATT (SCTE 3767) 3.67 2.37
TosTelt ufd gereret 316" (% sfeerg T 1,27,625.00 1,59,462.00
ATAT-S1/TH, Teell, Froeq Ud freerer
SCUTET ol TNATT (ST 315F)
HITT-21/T (IS WTETohos) 34.42 45.06
Teedl, AaeT ud e 5.07 8.66
HIT-21/T o Uil STeTeT WEfohel @ud i T8 farstott 1,166.36 1,221.81
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE - A

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)

Rules 2014 forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March 2018.

FORM A
(See Rule 2)
Particulars 2016-17 2017-18
Power & Fuel
Electricity
Purchased (Units) KWH 2,33,20,580.00 2,40,30,440.00
Amount (%) 14,39,50,733.00 15,32,10,799.00
Rate /Unit %) 6.17 6.38
Own generation
Units generated (KWH) 4,15,335.40 3,26,757.00
HSD QOil consumption (Ltr) 1,49,435.00 1,16,285.00
Units generated/ Ltr (KWHY/Ltr) 2.78 2.81
Cost /Unit (%) 21.60 21.15
Through Steam Turbine Generator NA NA
Coal NA NA
LNG
Quantity (Metric Tonne) 2,826.45 2,617.00
Amount () 9,53,71,781.78 1,07,74,730.90
Rate /Unit (%) 33,780.94 40,800.00
Furnace Oil
Quantity (Ltr.) 16,20,564.00 16,39,652.00
Amount (%) 4,26,73,896.54 4,68,93,219.00
Rate /Unit (%) 26.33 28.60
Consumption per unit of production
Condoms
Unit (M. Pcs) — Production (Moulded) 1,890.03 1,819.13
Electricity (KWH) per M. Pcs (Standard 8418) 8,910.80 8,148.65
Furnace Oil (KL) per M. Pcs (Standard 6.19) 2.49 2.52
Coal NA NA
LNG (MT) per M.Pcs 2.20 1.97
Copper —T
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 3.67 2.37
Electricity per M. Pcs (KWH) 1,27,625.00 1,59,462.00
Mala-D/N, Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Mala-D/N (M. Cycles) 34.42 45.06
Saheli, Novex & Preventol 5.07 8.66
Electricity consumed per million cycles of Mala-D/N 1,166.36 1,221.81
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Teelt, Foe Ud Weeier & Ufd S9Tetel TiEfehel WU i e festett 27074 287.61
TUA TS feastett (ST 3AR) - & eferg T 5,38,979.00 7,99,765.00
=TS ST
AR o7 INATT (ST 375F) 9.58 7.81
T =7 festett (F sfeerg T 0.194 0.290
ESei)
U ot TR (AT Fi) 2.02 1.31
fotett ufq T=H (% feerg Tar) 4.95 7.24
Toh BT - TehiE
Seutted gfe (fhermm) 1,111.34 1337.20
U e fasteli(F sty T 3,54,764.00 4,18,947.00
T &l TE H ae (fereR) 1,60,943.00 1,40,793.00
fastett v feretiam (3 efeerg T 319.22 313.00
T ot Uiq et (et ferex) 144.82 105.29
Mo eToT fehe
3eUTEd el IR (Seere fohe) 12.55 12.05
TosTelt Ui gereret fohe (3 efeerg wa) 7,498.42 7,690.46
T T E dct uid qurere fhe (fefeR) 3,903.10 4,149.38
AfeeT HueT
UG o7 IRHATT (378T) 12,54,686 28,25,987
forstett ufer o1eg (F efeerg wa) 0.10 0.08
At Jafer
SR (SCTET 37ER) 275.79 251.43
T i T fostert (F sfeerg T 8,85,469.00 8,86,815.00
TUA i TE fosTelt uid gererer 3,211.00 3,527.00
(&) ST AT
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Saheli, Novex & Preventol 270.74 287.61
Electricity consumed (both products)-KWH 538,979.00 7,99,765.00
Blood Bags

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 9.58 7.81
Electricity per bag (KWH) 0.194 0.290
Sutures

Total Quantity Produced ( Lacs Dozen) 2.02 1.31
Electricity per dozen (KWH) 4.95 7.24
Bulk Drug —Centchroman

Unit (Kg) produced 1,111.34 1337.20
Electricity consumed (KWH) 3,54,764.00 4,18,947.00
Furnace Oil consumed (Ltr.) 1,60,943.00 1,40,793.00
Electricity per Kg (KWH) 319.22 313.00
Furnace Oil per Kg (KL) 144.82 105.29
Pregnancy Test Kits

Total Quantity Produced (M. Kit) 12.55 12.05
Electricity per Million Kit (KWH) 7,498.42 7,690.46
HSD Oil per Million Kit (Ltr.) 3,903.10 4,149.38
Female Condoms

Total Quantity Produced (Pcs) 12,54,686 28,25,987
Electricity per Pc (KWH) 0.10 0.08
Sanitary Napkins

Production (M.Pcs) 275.79 251.43
Electricity consumed (KWH) 8,85,469.00 8,86,815.00
Electricity consumed per M.Pcs 3,211.00 3,527.00

[A] CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy conservation measures executed at the Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram
[PFT] are mentioned below:

i. Installed 8nos. of LIGHT PIPE in packing dept. to tap natural light and thus save electrical energy.
Total investment is %.3.46 Lacs having a savings of ¥65,000/- p.a.

ii. Installed 4nos. of Vortex Filters and pipe system for rain water harvesting. Installed capacity of the
filter-22kL/hr/filter. Total investment is ¥ 3.5Lakhs having a savings of 2.0.55 Lacs/year.

iii. Replaced all old T8/ CFL/ MH/ SOAX/ Incandescent lamps by energy efficient LED lights (55
nos. of old lamps by 12/18/36/72W LED light). Total investment is ¥ 2.5 Lacs having a savings of
% 0.65 Lacs per year.

iv. Installed Compact Module Twin Orifice Float Trap on trial basis in steam line to improve the overall
efficiency of condensate recovery system. Total investment is ¥1.5 Lacs having a savings of
% 1.75 Lakhs/year.

v. Replaced old rewound motors with IE2 motors in production area, Replaced old pump sets with
energy efficient pumps and replaced old air conditioners with star rated air conditioners /inverter
grade ACs. Total investment is ¥ 4 Lacs having a savings of ¥ 2.1 Lacs / year.
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b)

e)

f)

Energy conservation measures taken at Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT] are
mentioned below:

Shifted one 1010 KVA Diesel Generator from Irapuram Factory, Cochin (IFC), Installed at AFT and
Commissioned and there by improved Specific Energy Generation from 2.43 KWh/ Ltrs to 3.60
KWh/Ltrs and thus achieved a savings of ¥1.75 Lacs.

Replaced 100 nos of 40W Fluorescent Tube Lamps with 18W LED Lamps with an investment of
% 0.47 Lacs and thereby achieved a savings of ¥ 0.52 Lacs (8712 KWh) per annum.

Installed Pressure Transmitter in the Air Receiver and controlled the speed of Air Compressor with
a feedback with an investment of ¥ 0.23 Lacs and thereby achieved a savings of ¥ 0.11 Lacs per
annum.

Installed Duel Set Controller in the HVAC Cooling Tower Blower Starter with an investment of
% 0.15 Lacs. and thereby achieved a savings of ¥ 0.93 Lacs. (15509 KWh) per annum.

Usage of Internal Bore well water for non-drinking purpose with an investment of ¥ 0.90 Lacs and
thereby reduced the intake of water from Kerala Water Authority and thereby achieved a savings
of ¥1.52 Lacs.

Energy conservation measures implemented by Kanagala Factory, Belgaum [KFB] are
mentioned below:

Reduction of electrical energy consumption by replacing 880 No. of four feet 18 Watt LED tubes
replaced in place of 36 Watt Fluorescent lamps

Need based running of HVACs, where no activities are carried out.

Energy conservation measures taken at Kakkanad Factory, Cochin [KFC] are mentioned
below.

Reduction of electrical energy consumption by replacing CFL, fluorescent lamps with LED. Annual
savings of 36000 units amounting to around % 2,01,600/-

Energy conservation measure taken at Manesar Factory, Gurgaon [MFG] is mentioned
below.

Converted 20 no. of conventional fluorescent tubes with LED lightings

Energy conservation measures taken at Irapuram Factory, Cochin [IFC] is mentioned below.

The unit has saved 17000 (kWh)/annum of electricity by converting 52 overhead light fixtures (208 tubes)
on factory floor to LED tubes.
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[B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

B.1. Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

1) Installed four nos of indexing type dry testing Electronic Pinhole Testing machine. Improved rolling

of rrt condoms and reduction in wastage. Total investment is ¥ 1.85 Lacs.

2) In-house conversion of 2nos. of single line squeeze packing machine to double line square

packing machine. Advantages - Compact design, increased productivity and cost effective. Total
investment is ¥ 8.0 Lacs

B.2. Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram[AFT]

1.

Installed & Commissioned new Hot Air Dryer of M/s. Machin Fabrik, Mumbai for improving the
efficiency of the blood bag drying operations.

. Installed & Commissioned High Purity Nitrogen Generator of M/s. Domnic Hunter, US for Surgical

Suture production.

. Installed & Commissioned higher capacity Vacuum Chamber Sealing Machine of M/s. Multivac,
Germany.
. Installed & Commissioned Label Printing and Pasting Machine of M/s. ITW Signode, Bangalore for

Aluminium Foils of Blood Bag production.

5. Installed & Commissioned Thermal Barcode Printer for Blood Bag Labels.

8.
9.

. Installed & Commissioned higher capacity Mopping Machine to mop the primary PP cover with

Sodium Hypochlorite as part of quality improvement.

. Upgraded the Change-Rooms at Copper T and Implants Clean Rooms to comply with CDSCO

requirement.
Commissioned a new product facility for Haemostat in the Copper T floor

Developed Indigenous Welding dies for Pearl HF Welding Machine with a cost saving of ¥ 10 Lacs

10. Developed of 3Ltr Plasma pooling Bag

11. Developed of Cord Blood bag

12. Developed 150ml Triple Blood bag system

B.3. Kanagala Factory, Belgaum[KFB]

SNP - B production machine PLC programme changed to run without tissue paper to reduce
production cost.

ii. SNP - A production machine, installed new Maintenance free Compact slip rings to reduce break

downs.

Installed& commissioned of New PLC based closed loop chain control system for Moulding
Machines- A&B.

. Installed & Commissioned new three track condom packing machines developed by HLL CED

completed.
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B.4. Kakkanad Factory, Cochin[KFC]

i. Installed and commissioned of new four side sealing machine for Female Condom which enhances
the seal integrity of the product and reduces the overall production and operation cost.

ii. Modified in-house existing electronic pinhole testing machine thereby achieving better mechanical
stability and enhancing the overall efficiency of the machine.

[C] RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D) ACTIVITIES

Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram[PFT]

;:.') Activity Benefits derived as a result of R & D
In house Development of Rubber foam 1 Savings in the Procurement cost of Rubber foam stopper.
1 stopper for usage in Electronic Testing 2 Long life of Rubber stopper and hence Savings in replace-
machines to stop the rolled condoms in the ment Cost.
steel mold after testing to ensure that good 3 Availability of Latex foam stoppers at the needed time
condoms go to the good collection bin. 4 Annual savings of ¥ 10 Lacs per year.
2 Developr_’nent of Motia fragranced and New variants in the market.
Champaigne flavoured condoms.
Development of new coloured condoms  New variants in the market.
3 like Strawberry red and Chocolate Brown
condoms complying REACH Standards.

C.1. Kanagala Factory, Belgaum[KFB]
i. Levonorgestrel and Ethinylestradiol Tablets (0.15mg/0.03mg) developed
ii. Levonorgestrel 0.03 mg and 0.75 mg Tablets developed
iii. Ormeloxifene HCI 120mg Tablets IP developed

[D] SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

D.1. Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

Shifted one 1010 KVA Diesel Generator from Irapuram Factory, Cochin (IFC), Installed at AFT and
Commissioned and thereby improved Specific Energy Generation from 2.43 KWh / Ltrs to 3.60 KWh / Ltrs.

Future Plans

1. Installed and commissioned Fourth Side Sealing Machine for Suture Production. Investment
% 27.00 Lakhs and Expected Savings ¥ 11.99 Lacs.

2. Replaced old conventional Air Handling Unit of Implants production facility with new Energy
Efficient Double Skin one.

3. Replaced old DM Water Plant with a new higher capacity DM Water Plant with RO System.
D.2. Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]
i. Introduced pinch valve for accurate dosing of Poly Electrolyte in the mixing channel of ETP for
compaction of ETP sludge.

Consistency achieved weekly Treated Effluent characteristics such as COD, BOD, TDS,
Suspended Solids for the Final Treated Effluent by the introduction of Poly Electrolyte in the
Mixing channel of ETP and resulting in reduction in sludge volume by 40%.

ii. Developed Environment Index to quantitatively evaluate the environment performance of PFT and
considering the environment risk and opportunities relating with PFT operations.
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iii. Rain Water Harvesting

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations |

Installed 4 nos of Vortex Filters and Pipe Filters for rain water harvesting in plant- C having
catchment area 1161 sgm with capacity of 22 kl/hr/filter during November 2017.

Total savings 2200kl /year by the implementation of the system.

Investment- % 3.5 Lacs, Savings-3 0.55 Lacs / year.

iv. Solid Waste sludge is used for manuring of plants in the factory premises and vegetation of plants
using sludge from ETP.

v. Construction of earmarked yards with lock and key facility for disposing segregated solid wastes
such as Plastic crates, Metal wastes, SS, Core plastic.

[E] Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

Earnings
Outgo
Total

Particulars

(2016-17)
Previous year ¥ in Lacs
9,986.46
19,585.04
29,571.50

(2017-18)
Current year
T in lacs

7,081.99
12,825.66
19,907.65
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ANNEXURE- B
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and
policy and the Company has been pursuing this on a sustained basis. The Company has framed and
adopted a Policy on CSR & Sustainability to align its philosophy to initiate measures and pursue socially
useful programmes with the objectives and activities of CSR envisaged and incorporated in the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and the policy directions issued by the Government from time
to time. The Policy on CSR & Sustainability formulated in 2013 was subsequently revised to align with the
newly introduced provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII of the
Companies Act,2013.

During the year, the Company had spent % 27.39 lakhs against 2% of average net profit of ¥ 22.05 lakhs
towards CSR and Sustainable Development.

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR 2017-18

1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, = Company continued to undertake CSR works during year under
projects and programs proposed to be undertaken  review. CSR Policy:
and a reference to the web-link to CSR Policy and

- a) Establishing a guideline for compliance with the provisions of
projects or programs.

Regulations to dedicate a percentage of company’s profits
for social projects.

b) Ensuring the implementation of CSR initiatives in letter and
spirit through appropriate procedures and reporting.

c) Creating opportunities for employees to participate in socially
responsible initiatives.

d) Demonstrate commitment to the common good through
responsible business practices and good governance.

e) Engender a sense of empathy and equity among employees
of HLL to motivate them to give back to the society.

2. Composition of CSR Committee. Ms. Aradhana Johri,Chairperson
(G CIISAHALY) Shri R.P.Khandelwal, Member
Shri E A Subramanian, Member
Shri T Rajasekar, Member

3 Average Net Profit/ loss of the Company for last T lacs
three Financial year. )
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Average Net Profit
3752.79 3614.59 (4059.51) 1,102.44
4 Proposed CSR Expenditure (2% of the
amount as in item 3 above) 3 22.05 lacs

5 Details of the CSR spent during the financial year i) Total amount to be spent for the FY 2017-18: ¥ 22.05 lacs
ii) Amount, unspent, if any : NIL

iii) Manner in which the amount was spent during the year is
provided below.
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A. CSR INITIATIVES :
A (i) General Health

In consonance with the World Health Organization’s theme of Universal Health Coverage: Health for
all, the HLL Life Care Ltd. envisaged two interventions for promoting the Right to Life of two vulnerable
sections of the Society. HLL LifeCare Ltd, Poojappura, Thiruvananthapuram in the year 2017-18 as part
of its Corporate Social Responsibility entrusted the implementation of the health interventions to the
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust, Thiruvananthapuram.

The interventions focused on reaching out preventive and promotive care to the inter-state labourers and
women. The intervention among the inter- state labourers composed of a Baseline Study, Medical camps,
screening of major public health, measures for environmental sanitation; and that among the women
composed of the screening of women for abnormalities in Thyroid functioning, detection and management
of the abnormalities, follow-up and referral in the Thiruvananthapuram Municipal Corporation.

(a) Migrant Health Intervention
The project involved three major interventions.

a. A baseline study to understand the health seeking behaviour, level of satisfaction and issues of
availability and accessibility of health services among 100 inter-state labourers in the Municipal
Corporation of Thriuvananthapuram.

b. Conducting medical camps by a Mobile Medical Unit to provide health care and referral services
to cover estimated 3000 Inter-State Migrants labourers in the area.

(b) Thyroid Management Programme

As part of the CSR Project of the HLL Lifecare Ltd. a thyroid screening and management
intervention was implemented for women in the slum areas of the Thiruvananthapuram district
during October 2017 to March 2018. This Mobile Medical Unit was lead by a General Medical
Practitioner, and the team included a Staff Nurse, a Lab Technician and a Project Coordinator.
MMU vehicle was branded with logo of the HLL Lifecare and HLFPPT.

(i). Targets

Women in the age group of 18-50 in five slum areas in Manacaud, Kuriyathi, Poojappura, Jagathy, and
Vallakkadavu wards of the Thiruvananthapuram Municipal Corporation.

(ii) Components

The intervention had three major components
a.. Community level screening
b. Thyroid anomaly detection and treatment camps
c. Review and follow up treatment camps

A(ii) HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society

The Society is registered with the Objective of sponsoring students belonging to the BPL category to
pursue professional studies and also to support the health care of retired employees. Accordingly, two
schemes were launched by the society; one for sponsoring students and the other for giving financial
support for availing treatment for critical illness.

Thirty students were selected from Trivandrum District and Kanagala District, being the two districts where
the two major manufacturing units of the company are located and were distributed scholarship as detailed
below. The funds for the society is pooled through the monthly individual contribution of all the employees.
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In the year 2017-18, students pursuing different professional courses were selected for receiving the
sponsorship. Including the students selected during previous years, presently there are 118 students who
are being sponsored by HLL.

A (iii) My City Project — Kowdiar ward, Thiruvananthapuram

Solid waste management has become one of the global challenges of today in maintaining a healthy
environment. In this context HLL Life care Ltd. had formulated ‘My City Project’.The pilot project is
implemented in the Kowdiar ward of Thiruvananthapuram Corporation in association with Govt. of Kerala,
Thiruvananthapuram Municipal Corporation, Suchitwa Mission, Residents Associations in the area.

Under the project an eco-friendly and cost effective solid waste management system jointly by Government,
Corporation, NGOs and the residents of the ward is implemented with focus on processing waste at source
and collection of plastic and centralized processing . As part of the project, beautification of the project
area by ensuring cleanliness setting up mechanisms for management of bio-degradable and plastic waste
is also undertaken.

Pakalveedu Project -

For rehabilitation of the cured patients of the Mental Hospital, Trivandrum. The recovered patients are
engaged in Condom peeling job and are paid remuneration for the same. On an average 20 people are
engaged on a daily basis and they earn .3,500/- to ¥3,700/- per month.

Sponsoring orphans at saigramam -

Five inmates of the orphanage eat saigramam in Trivandrum are sponsored by the Company by paying
%15,000/ per head annually.

B. HINDUSTAN LATEX FAMILY PLANNING PROMOTION TRUST (HLFPPT),

Set up by HLL Lifecare Ltd in 1992, Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT) is a non
profit health organisation serving across country in 21 States/UTs through over fifty active programmes
covering the wide spectrum of RMNCH+A (Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn, Child and Adolescent
health care) and HIV prevention and control. With a vision of touching lives with quality care, compassion
and emerge as globally credible organisation, HLFPPT is currently providing services in following areas:

1
2
3

) Family Planning
)
)
4) HIV Prevention and Control
)
)

Maternal and Child Health Care

Adolescent Health Care

5) CSR Partnerships
6) Skill Development
7) WASH

With over 25 years of service in the area of social development and public health, HLFPPT has been
part of technical support, implementation and monitoring of various reproductive and child health, HIV
and AIDS prevention, care and support programmes partnering with the Ministry of Health and Family
Welfare, Government of India, several State and International Development Partners. These years of
experience have equipped the organisation to build strategic expertise in the area of social marketing of
contraceptives, social franchising health networks, technical support to national and international partners,
capacity building of stakeholders at various levels, community development programmes, public private
partnerships, behaviour change communication, research and knowledge management to name a few.
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Following section will share the key highlights for the year 2017-18.

(i) Social Marketing

Currently, the Contraceptive Social Marketing Programme covers Rajasthan, Himachal Pradesh, West
Bengal, Odisha, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Jharkhand, Bihar, Assam, Chhatisgarh, Madhya
Pradesh, Punjab, Delhi and Haryana. A total of 264 districts are being covered in these 14 States of the
Country.

HLFPPT in year 2017 -18 has been marketed its own brands of Condoms Rakshak, Josh,IUCD M-care
and Sanitary Napkin Sakhi focussing on making them easily available. Apart from medical and general
stores these products have been promoted through use of media in form of press advertisements, outdoor
promotional activities which include hoardings, posters, stickers, envelops and danglers at chemist shops.
These efforts have resulted in a total sale of over 60 million condoms, 25,000 IUCD’s and 15.47 Sanitary
Napkins .

(ii) Social Franchising

HLFPPT has instituted the network in four States (Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Bihar, Odisha) with a network
of more than 700 private hospitals. Through Merry Gold Health Network and Amrit Ujjwal, HLFPPT has
so far ensured 2.5 million Antenatal Check ups, over % 7 lakh institutional deliveries, % 2 lakh sterilizations
and % 2.5 lakhs IUCD’s insertion.

(iii) Corporate Social Responsibility

The CSR partnerships enable HLFPPT to provide primary healthcare services to under privileged
communities through technical assistance and advisory services. Through these partnerships HLFPPT
establishes sustainable models of development that are replicable & scalable.

(iv) Capacity Building

Capacity Building for professionals, institutions and community members has been a major vertical
of HLFPPT. HLFPPT maintains its strong emphasis on high quality training content, resources and
methodologies through skilled trainers and experts. The Cascading Model approach is followed wherein
national and regional-level master trainers train local governments and local government-level trainers
train communities at the grassroots level.

a) Capacity building under RKSK Project.
b) Capacity Building of Health Service Providers for IUCD insertions.
c) Laerdal project.

(v) District Early Intervention Centres

Rashtriya Bal Swasthya Karyakaram (RBSK) was launched in year 2013 to improve survival outcomes
through early identification and management of defects at birth, deficiencies, diseases, development
delays including disabilities-4Ds and assured link to care, support and treatment to meet these challenges
through DEICs at district level. With support from MoHFW and NHM UP, HLFPPT has established and
operationalized one Centre of Excellence DEIC in District Gautam Budh Nagar in Uttar Pradesh. The CoE
DEIC was inaugurated on 11th May 2018 by Prof Rita Bhauguna Joshi Hon’ble Cabinet Minister of Health
and Family Welfare, Maternal Child Welfare and Tourism, Government of U.P.

This CoE Model DEIC has state-of-art infrastructure facilities, equipment’s with specialized and trained
human resource with standardized treatment, diagnosis and referral protocols to ensure delivery of child
friendly services. This center also acts as training center for other upcoming DEICs. The DEIC is equipped
with age appropriate and domain specific equipment’'s and with specific trained domain specialists.
The launch event was graced by the presence of Mobile Medical Units — Making Healthcare Services
Accessible
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Over the years, HLFPPT is operating and managing a fleet of Mobile Medical Units (MMUs) across the
Country for various donors for improving last mile access to quality healthcare services. Each MMU
is manned by a team of medical professionals, including Doctor, Nurse, Lab Technician, Pharmacist
and Outreach Worker. MMU provides a range of curative services like treatment for minor ailments;
provision of first aid, minor surgical procedures; early clinical diagnosis of communicable diseases and
non-communicable diseases, referral of complicated cases, early diagnosis of pregnancy, ANC check-
ups, basic newborn care, family planning counseling, provision of contraceptives, STI prevention and
management, eye checkups etc. In addition, on need basis, specialist services as also specialized
diagnostics are also provided to the community. MMU also provides basic medicines, consumables and
diagnostics facilities to the patients. Currently, HLFPPT is operationalizing over 160 MMUs across various
States.

HLFPPT is operationalizing 130 Mobile Medical Units in Assam in PPP mode for improving healthcare
service delivery and health outcomes in the underserved areas. The project has been rolled out with
support of National Health Mission (Assam). The objective of these MMUs is to provide primary & selective
secondary healthcare services and medicines to nearly 26 lakh population in about 2600 villages across
all the districts.

With the support and guidance of state & district level authorities over 18,508 health camps were
conducted till March 2018 and provided health care services to more than 7.22 lakhs target audience. The
programme has benefitted more than 1 lakh people with free lab test services.

Skill Development Program

In the year 2017-18, Skill Development at HLFPPT has expanded its’ reach beyond health sector. At
present HLFPPT offer trainings in 26 different job roles/ trades within 9 work sectors. The authenticity
of our training is reflected in our affiliations with different sector skill councils. HLFPPT have received
affiliations from Healthcare Sector Skill Council, Construction Skill Council of India, Tourism and Hospitality
Sector Skill Council and Retailers Association Skill Council of India. HLFPPT got empanelled with various
Center and State level nodal agencies and currently running 24 projects/ schemes as a promising training
provider of these agencies. HLFPPT has also received ‘Best Training Provider Award’ by National Urban
Livelihood Mission, Kerala for the year 2017-18. HLFPPT also participated in National level knowledge
sharing platforms in Delhi named Skilled in Odisha- A way forward and Skoch Awards. HLFPPT has spread
our footprints across pan India at 11 States. Last year, we have received targets of 28,000 candidates to
be trained. We trained 5000 candidates and provided placement to 1200 trainees across pan India..

(vi) Social Behaviour Change Communication

HLFPPT recognizes the proven effectiveness of Social Behaviour Change Communication in the area of
health promotion especially in increasing the use of family planning methods, prevention of HIV/AIDS and
improvement of newborn, children and maternal health and nutrition, therefore, SBCC is an integral part of
all projects under HLFPPT. The organisation specialises in customizing appropriate messaging for target
population and key stakeholders, pre testing messages and materials and using relevant IEC material and
interpersonal communication tools to achieve defined behavioural objectives. This approach helps the
organisation to custom deliver the message specifically designed for a particular audience leading to high
acceptance in community and quality intervention roll out.

(vii) Research and Development

In year 2017-18, the Research and Development vertical of HLFPPT has proudly associated with UNICEF
— Uttar Pradesh and Way forward in Uttrakhand to conduct research studies on adolescent health and
mental health respectively. The Government of India, HLFPPT recently has been awarded with a study by
NHM Meghalaya on “Family Planning Survey” planned across all districts of the State. The organization
will also be presenting a paper on “Extending the axis to Family Planning in Uttar Pradesh” at International
Conference “Fourth International Conference on Global Public Health 2018- Sri Lanka”.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company is renowned for exemplary governance standards since inception and continues to devote
its emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. The Company is committed to adhere to the
ethical values and thereby ensures fairness to all stakeholders including customers, employees, investors
and society at large. The basic objective of Corporate Governance policies adopted by the Company is
to attain the highest levels of transparency, accountability and integrity. This objective extends not merely
to complying with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued
by the Department of Public Enterprises, but also to go beyond them by putting in place procedures and
systems, which are in accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company has
been methodically following the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public
Enterprises and consistently scoring ‘Excellent’ grading.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has made the majority of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
effective from 1st April, 2014. The new Act is a positive step towards strengthening corporate governance
regime in the country. Your Company is already in substantial compliance with most of the governance
requirements provided under the new law.

The Company’s Corporate Governance policies and practices focus on the following principles:

. To recognize the respective roles & responsibilities of the Board and Management.
. To achieve the highest degree of transparency by maintaining a high degree of disclosure levels.

1

2

3. To ensure and maintain high ethical standards in its functioning.

4. To ensure a sound system of risk management and internal controls.
5

. To ensure that employees of the Company subscribe to the corporate values and apply them to
their conduct.

6. To ensure that the decision making process is fair and transparent.
7. To ensure that the Company follows globally recognized corporate governance practices.

A brief description of the Corporate Governance practices followed in your Company is given below.

1. SIZE AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD:

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience
and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business.
Your Company, being a Government Undertaking, the appointment/nomination of all the Directors is done
by the President of India, through the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Board has an appropriate
mix of executive and non-executive Directors. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that
the number of Directors shall not be less than three (3) and not more than ten (10).

The present actual strength of Board of Directors of the Company is five (5) comprising
- two(2) official Directors representing the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India

- three (3) Functional Directors namely Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Technical &
Operation) and Director (Marketing).

Annual Report 2017-2018 79




”'l TAUAUA aATshaeR fafdes
_'l g G & e aamver N

i€ % g (5) FeweR ¥ (2) Hieet HRvE § U WERT Al FRveh 3R Uh Wed Mewe € | Hee S w@e
AT e foriT, Ra R g1 SRT fohu Mo fmfaa stfyemas & feenfasen & oFEr §1

13 37, 2018 Teh o 9T ool Sl aae A &1 STt & | FR¥est § g i |rersii-eh shaai o 10 § 31fues aie @i
qiufet & wee o @ E, S A o U e afEiaat @ etfuss | A d Mo & a1 Sreaetdr w8t Sl © |

. o b &
EaE) Frer 1 Feer 91 o N ks SN O A i
Ealketes) |
1. S RF. ocq ME T TH T T YeiHeh FevTeh 6 3
2. ot foeman sieree e T uE THR AT Fems 3 I
3. gt vifq da smeETy THR e s 1 Bl
4, st SugeHOAA TR (TRt Te TeITer) 3 1
6. o IR ey (famor) 1 3

TR et AT % TS SIRIEE, YA ot gHvad w & fou 7 it e €1 SiE & ik, s,
ST AR e T &Y § FHia 5 ™ €1 Heot 3797 Yol [STogiRar 1 Hee 310t Wefseh wdaem s
H TR SR A 6 e AT € AR GHAREd Hr & o Ty Al TRERI SR TR0 & SeaaH "
STTERYT AT &1 IR HIeTh vl e Heot & 8 TS 1 Hol | Fafed ot oft STHepRt 1 quf uga €1

2. So% AW TR

STET T WYF € 9otk i AR 3R FHREGE Ale HRwen! H Taet ¥ & uRenterd R S €1 St ford g & SRM,
165, 2017, 28 5, 2017, 22 s 2017, 29 Fear 201734 27 @rer 2018 =i U SIS aash ST i T |

Hedt da%h 3R T S A 935 i gTeRt gorT A &1 St 2 |

FHTE ¥ AR S e 2017-18 = =R =5 1 R
TeemeR 1 AT .

Jaeht i T Tieet do% RRsR

T 3R, a0 3T T TH 2 2 T T
ot TR, @ugetareT* 5 5 Sk
ot forsTan sfarear s T w| 5 4 St &
ot o STRATE SEvTE 5 4 Skl
ol SARTET STed! Sméuna* 5 4 ST &
ot 3.0 gemuaa 5 5 ST &t
At 2 TSTRIER 5 5 ST &t

* T TR I T B W AT & JET & T | FHI & SR & oy R gee o i’ e & T
0 9.23.1 & T |

80 aees e 2017-2018



& 4 ; .o
i @ HLL Lifecare Limited
] Y 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations [ NN

Among the five (5) directors there are two (2) women directors comprising Govt. Nominee Directors and
one Independent Director on the Board. The composition of the Board is substantially in line with the
Guide- lines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of
India.

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 13th August, 2018 is given below. None of the Directors
are member of more than 10 Board level Committees of public companies in which they are Directors nor
holds chairmanship in more than five such committees.

No. of

No. of Other 3‘2?21‘:::;5’

Sl. No. Name of the Director Category of Director Director-ship of Board Con?

held hsew i

mittee in other

companies

1 Dr. R K Vats IAS Chairman and Managing Director 6 5
2 Smt. Vijaya Srivastava IAS ~ Government Nominee Director 3 Nil
S Ms Preeti Pant Government Nominee Director 1 Nil
4 Shri E A Subramanian Director (Technical & Operations) 3 1
5 Shri T. Rajasekar Director (Marketing) 1 3

The Board of Directors plays a primary role in ensuring good governance and smooth functioning of the
Company. The Board’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined. The Board
acts with autonomy and independence in exercising its strategic supervision, discharging its fiduciary
responsibilities and ensuring that the management observes the highest standards of ethics, transparency
and disclosure. Every member of the Board, including the Non-Executive Directors, has full access to any
information related to the Company.

2. MEETING AND ATTENDANCE

The Notice and Agenda notes of the Meetings are circulated to the Directors as far as possible well
in advance. During the financial year under review, five Board meetings were held on 16" May 2017,
28" June 2017, 22" August 2017, 29" November 2017 and 27" March 2018.

Information of attendance at the board meetings and the last annual general meeting is given below:

S T No. of Bc'>ard meetings Held Attendance of meeting during 2017-18
during the tenure Board Meetings Last AGM
Dr R K Vats IAS 2 2 Not Applicable
Shri R P Khandelwal® 5 ) Yes
Smt Vijaya Srivastava IAS 5 4 Yes
Shri Lav Agarwal IAS* 5 4 Yes
Ms. Aradhana Johri IAS*- 5 4 Yes
Shri E A Subramanian 5 5 Yes
Shri T Rajasekar 5 5 Yes

* The Director has ceased from the Company on completion of his tenure. For the details of cessation refer SI No. 23.1
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3. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India appoints Chairman & Managing
Director and the other Functional Directors after the due process of selection is completed by Public
Enterprises Selection Board. The remuneration and terms and conditions of their directorship are decided
by Department of Public Enterprises. The Chairman & Managing Director and the Functional Directors are
appointed for a period of five years or till the date of their superannuation or until further orders, whichever
is earlier.

Non-official part-time Independent Directors are also appointed by the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India for a period of three years and are paid a sitting fee of ¥10,000/- for attending each
meeting of the Board and the Board appointed Sub Committees.

4. APPOINTMENT OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
& Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, which have come into force from 1st April, 2014
the Board of directors has appointed the following Directors/Executives as the Key Managerial Personnel
(KMPs) of the Company on their existing terms & conditions of appointment, including remuneration:

1. Dr R K Vats IAS - Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri E A Subramanian - Director (Technical & Operation)

3. Shri T Rajasekar - Director (Marketing)

4. Shri R Ganesan - Chief Financial Officer & Sr. Vice-President (Finance)
5. Shri P. Sreekumar - Company Secretary & Sr. Vice-President (CAS)

5. COMPANY POLICIES

5.1 Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions:

The Company strictly follows all relevant provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 on dealing with Related Party transactions.

5.2 Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

HLL being a Government Company, the power to appoint Directors and to fix their remuneration vests
with Government of India. The Company is governed under DPE Guidelines regarding the Remuneration
Policies of Directors. The Company had complied with the relevant guidelines prescribed by the Department
of Public Enterprises in this regard.

6. BOARD CHARTER

As Trustees of the Company, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for
achievement which are in alignment with the Vision and Mission of the Company. The Board provides
strategic directions, reviews corporate performance, authorizes and monitors strategic decisions, ensures
regulatory compliances and safeguards interest of stakeholders. The Board of Directors adhere to the
Board Charter adopted by the Board of Directors, which clearly sets out the role, structure, responsibilities
and operation of Company’s Board of Directors and its delegation of authority.

7. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board of Directors of your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct during the year 2017-18. A declaration to
this effect signed by the Chairman & Managing Director forms part of this report.
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8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

During the year under review there was only one Independent Director on the Board of HLL. Accordingly,
it was not possible to hold Independent Director’s meeting.

9. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review the Central Government has revised the Secretarial Standards on Meetings
of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2). These Standards
came into force on 01stJuly 2015. Adherence by the Company to these Standards is mandatory as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, your Company has complied with both the Standards.
The SS 1 and SS 2 prescribes a set of principles for convening and conducting the Meetings of the Board
of Directors, meetings of Committees, General Meetings and such other matters related thereto.

10.DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Company has prepared the financial statements for the year 2017-18 in accordance with the Ind AS
34.

11. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been
constituted to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated. As a
part of good governance practice, the Committees of the Company are constituted with the formal approval
of the Board and appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference/role of the Committees done
by the Board of Directors. The Committees also make specific recommendations to the Board on various
matters whenever required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are
placed before the Board for information or for approval.

The Company has currently established following committees, namely:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. CSR & SD Committee

4. Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee
1.1 Audit Committee

Audit Committee at the Board level is one of the main pillars of Corporate Governance mechanism of
the Company. Audit Committee aims to enhance the confidence in the integrity of Company’s financial
reporting, Internal control processes and act as a link between the Auditors and Board of Directors.

11.1.1. Composition as on 31.3.2018

The Audit Committee comprised one (1) Independent Directors and two (2) Functional Directors as shown
below:

a) Ms. Aradhana Johri, Chairperson*
b) Shri E A Subramanian, Member
c) Shri T Rajasekar, Member

* Consequent to resignation, Ms Aradhana Johri has ceased to be Director on 17" July, 2018.

The Company will induct one more Independent Director to the Audit Committee as and when appointed
by the Government.
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Chairperson, Ms Aradhan Johri is the only Independent Director of the Company and she possess
extensive accounting and related financial management expertise.

11.1.2. Audit Committee reviews the following matters:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

vii)
viii)
iX)
Xi)

xii)

xiit)

Xiv)

XV)

XVi)

Xvii)

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, where it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;and

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval, with particular reference to:

Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;and

Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the
internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/ or auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/agencies into
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matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of
a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

xviii) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

xix)  To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

xx)  To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
xxi)  To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C& A G audit

xxii) To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public
Undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament.

xxiii) Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor
and the Board of Directors

xxiv) Review all related party transactions in the Company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee
may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions.

xxv) Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness
of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

xxvi) Consider and review the following with the independent audit or and the management:

- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls
and security,and

- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor,
together with the management responses.

xxvii) Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent
auditor:

- Significantfindings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of
activities or access to required information.

xxviii) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

11.1.3. Meetings and Attendance
During the financial year ended 31t March, 2018, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on

24" June 2017, 11" August 2017, 3 November, 2017 and 23" February, 2018. The attendance of the
members at the meeting was as follows:

Name of the Committee Member No. of meetings held during the tenure No. of meetings attended
Ms Aradhana Johri 4 4
Shri E A Subramanian 4 4
Shri T Rajasekar 4 3
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11.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The scope and terms of reference of the Committee was enlarged by including the matters specified in
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

11.2.1. Composition as on 31.3.2018
The composition of the Committee is as shown below:

a) Ms. Aradhana Johri, Independent Director*
b) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director(Finance)

* Consequent to resignation, Ms Aradhana Johri has ceased to be Director on 17th July, 2018.

The Company will reconstitute the Committee by inducting Independent Directors as and when they are
appointed by the Government and the newly appointed Director (Finance) joins the Board of HLL.

11.2.2. Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review, the Remuneration committee met once on 22nd February, 2018. The
attendance of the members at the meetings were as follows:

Name of the Committee Member No. of meetings held during the period No. of meetings attended
Ms Aradhana Johri* 1 1
Shri R.P. Khandelwal * 1 1

* Consequent to superannuation, Shri R P Khandelwal has ceased to be Director from the Board of HLL
w.e.f 315t May, 2018

* Consequent to resignation, Ms Aradhana Johri has ceased to be Director on 171 July, 2018.
11.3 Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development Committee

11.3.1. Composition as on 31.3.2018

The composition of CSR & Sustainable Development Committee is as under.

a) Ms Aradhana Johri , Independent Director, (Chairperson)
b) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)

c) Shri E A Subramanian, Director (T&O)

d)

11.3.2. Terms of reference

Shri T Rajasekar, Director (Marketing)

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
following are the scope/terms of reference of the CSR & SD Committee:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company.

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the above activities

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Vompany from time to time.
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During the year under report, the CSR & SD Committee met on 24" June, 2017, 27" July, 2017 and 16"

November, 2017. The attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

D | it
Ms Aradhana Johri* Chairperson S 3
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal* Member 5 2
Shri E A Subramanian Member 3 3
Shri T Rajasekar Member 3 2

* Consequent to superannuation, Shri R P Khandelwal has ceased to be Directors from the Board of HLL
w.e.f 315t May, 2018.

* Consequent to resignation, Ms Aradhana Johri has ceased to be Director on 171 July, 2018.

11.4. Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee

11.4.1. Composition as on 31.3.2018

The composition of Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee [SFIC] is as under.
1) Shri R.P. Khandelwal,Director (Finance)
2) Shri EA Subramanian,Director (T&O)
3) Shri T Rajasekar,Director (Marketing)

11.4.2. Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee includes the following

i. Develop long-term strategies and policies for the company.
ii. Assessment of HLL's internal and external business environment.
iii. Develop a strategic management process for achieving company’s annual business targets.

iv. Assess and approve for implementation projects that are supportive of go a Isand plans of HLL
as outlined in the Vision 2020 Plan.

V. Plan periodic senior leadership meetings with a strategic agenda.

vi. Provide guidance for effective functioning of the strategic management department inthe
Company.

vii.  Assist the Board of directors in monitoring and evaluation of projects by identifying
implementation problems or outstanding performance through project exception reports.

viii.  Monitor and evaluate financial and physical performance of all projects.

ix Recommend investment / project proposals to the Board.

During the year under report, the Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee met once on 15" June
2017. The attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

Name Position Nc! of Meetings No of Meetings
during the tenure Attended
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal* Member 1 1
Shri E A Subramanian Member 1 1
Shri T Rajasekar Member 1 1

* Consequent to superannuation, Shri R P Khandelwal has ceased to be Director from the Board of HLL

w.e.f 31t May, 2018.
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12.INFORMATION TO BE PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has complete access to any information within the Company. The information inter alia, regularly
supplied to the Board includes:

a) Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.
b) Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, etc.
c) Quarterly results of the Company.

d) Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board including minutes
of Subsidiary Company and Joint-venture Company.

e) Maijor Investments, formation of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Strategic Alliances,etc.
f) Award of large Contracts.

a) Disclosure of Interest by Directors about directorship and committee positions occupied by
them in other Companies.

h) Monthly Report on Commercial Status of the Company.
i) Report on the status of various on going projects / scheme and Budget Utilization.

j) Any significant development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of
wage agreement,etc.

k) Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ service
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

1) Other materially important information.
13. POST MEETING FOLLOW-UP SYSTEM:

The Governance process in the Company include an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting
process for action taken/pending on decisions of the Board and the Board Committee(s).

14. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

HLL is not listed at any Stock Exchange in India or abroad. The entire paid up equity share capital of the
Company is held by the President of India and his nominees.

15. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

The Date, Time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company is as follows

Whether Special
AGM Financial Year Date Time Venue Resolution(s)
Passed or Not

49 2014-2015 28" Sept. 2015 12.00 Noon. New Delhi No
50t 2015-2016 23 Sept. 2016 3.00 p.m New Delhi No
ot 2016-2017 28" Sept. 2017 11.00 a.m. New Delhi No
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Date, Time and Venue of 52nd Annual General Meeting of the Company

Date Time Venue
27.09.2018 11.00 AM New Delhi

16. DISCLOSURES:

» Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, associates, key managerial
personnel during the year 2017-18 are given as Note No. 2.31 to the Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31 March, 2018. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interests
of the Company at large. All transactions with the related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and at arm’s length price.

» There were no cases of non-compliance by the Company and penalties, strictures imposed on the
Company by any statutory authority on any statutory payment requirements.

* Presidential directives issued by the Central government in respect of Official Language
Implementation have been complied with during the year and also in the last three years in the
Company.

« The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparing the Financial Statements.

* There were no items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes
of the business.

+ The Company has adequately insured all its assets and also the various business risks connected
with the business of the Company and that it has duly paid insurance premium.

+ The Company has adopted Foreign Exchange & Risk Management Policy to protect Rupee value
of Foreign currency cash flows of the Company from adverse impact of fluctuations in exchange
rates and interest rates.

+ The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy and it is affirmed that no person has been denied
access to the Audit Committee in respect of reporting of suspected violations.

17.GENERAL INFORMATION
17.1.  Training of Directors:

The Company has adopted Guidelines on Corporate Governance May 2010 issued by Department of
Public Enterprise. Based on the DPE guidelines the company has adopted Training policy for Board
members. During the year under review, Shri E A Subramanian, Director (Technical & Operations) has
attended one day training organized by Confederation of Indian Industry [CII] on “CEO Retreat.”Similarly,
Ms. Aradhana johri, independent Director attended Orientation Programme for Capacity Building of non-
official Directors of CPSEs during 5th and 6™ October 2017.

17.2. Means of Communication:

Timely disclosure of relevant and reliable information is at the core of good Corporate Governance practice.
Toward this end your Company has taken following initiatives.

Annual Audited Financial The Company publishes its annual audited statement of accounts in the official website
Statements www.lifecarehll.com

News Releases All updates on Company’s development and changes are published through Company’s
Monthly photo newsletter, monthly bulletin and quarterly magazine and are also displayed
on the Company’s website www.lifecarehll.com
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The Company’s Corporate Website www.lifecarehll.com provides comprehensive informa-
tion about the products, business segments, upcoming projects etc. The company videos
are displayed through webinar in the website and also through the YouTube channel www.
youtube.com/channelHLL

The Annual Report of the Company is circulated to the shareholders, Ministry of Health &
Family Welfare, Comptroller and Auditor General of India and all others entitled thereto like
Statutory Auditors etc.

17.3. Plant Locations

Manufacturing

Contraceptives

Hospital Products

Contraceptives

Contraceptives

Pharma and personal hygiene
Products

Hospital Products

Pharma Products

Contraceptives

Ayurveda & Unani products

Plant Name and Location

Peroorkada Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram (PFT), Kerala

Akkulam Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram (AFT),
Kerala

Kakkanad Factory Kochi, (KFC),
Kerala

Kanagala Factory,
Belgaum, (KFB)
Karnataka

Manesar Factory, Gurgaon,
(MFG),Haryana

Sanver Road Factory, Indore,
Madhya Pradesh (PFI)

Irapuram Factory, Cochin, (IFC),
Kerala

Haridwar Factory,
Uttarakhand

Address

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Peroorkada Factory, Peroorkada
Thiruvananthapuram - 695005
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Akkulam Factory, Akkulam,
Thiruvananthapuram - 695017
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Cochin Special Economic Zone
Division, Plot No:16A/1,
Kakkanadu, Cochin -682037
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum,
Karnataka - 591225

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manesar Unit, Plot No: 71 Sector 7,
Gurgaon, Haryana -122050

HLL Lifecare Ltd,

Sector-E, Sanver Road Industrial
Area, Indore - Madhya Pradesh
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Re-Sy.No 156/3,

Block No.29 Rubber Park,
Valayanchirangara
Irapuram,Cochin-683 556

Kharsa No. 37, Gram Makhanpur,

Bhagwanpur Tehsil, Haridwar District,
Uttarakhand — 247 661
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS
1.1 Healthcare Industry -Outlook

The Indian healthcare sector is expected to reach ¥ 8.6 trillion (US$ 133.44 billion) by the year 2022.
Rising income level, greater health awareness, increased precedence of lifestyle diseases and improved
access to insurance would be the key contributors to growth. The sector is expected to generate 40 million
jobs in India by 2030. 100,000 jobs are expected to be created from Ayushman Bharat, the National Health
Protection Scheme. As of July 2018, number of primary health centres (PHCs) increased to 32,783 and
number of sub centres reached to 167,759.

The Union Budget outlay under Health & Family Welfare for the year 2018-19 is INR 52,800. The budget
allocation for the year 2018-19 is 8% higher than the previous year. Government of India’s goal is providing
Universal Health coverage that provides health care and financial protection to all citizens. Ministry of
Health & Family Welfare [MoHFW] Government of India, had released National Health Policy. The main
objective of the National Health Policy is to achieve the highest possible level of good health and well-
being, through a preventive and promotive health care orientation in all developmental policies and to
achieve universal access to good quality health care services without anyone having to face financial
hardship as a consequence. Primary healthcare is sought to be made more comprehensive covering
preventive, promotive, curative, palliative, geriatric and rehabilitative care. The National Health Protection
Scheme is largest government funded healthcare programme in the world, which is expected to benefit
100 million poor families in the country by providing a cover of up to ¥ 5 lakh (US$ 7,723.2) per family per
year for secondary and tertiary care hospitalisation. The programme was announced in Union Budget
2018-19.

1.2 Contraceptives:

Contraceptive devices hold major market share owing to more effectiveness and long-term effect. The
segment is rapidly adopted worldwide and will continue to grow during the forecast period. Family planning
has undergone a paradigm shift and emerged as a key intervention to reduce maternal and infant mortalities
and morbidities. It is well-established that the States with high contraceptive prevalence rate have lower
maternal and infant mortalities. Greater investments in family planning can thus help mitigate the impact of
high population growth by helping women achieve desired family size and avoid unintended and mistimed
pregnancies. Further, contraceptive use can prevent recourse to induce abortion and eliminate most of
these deaths.

1.3 Pharmaceuticals:

The Indian pharmaceutical market size is expected to grow to US$ 100 billion by 2025, driven by increasing
consumer spending, rapid urbanisation, and raising healthcare insurance among others. Pharma sector’s
revenues are expected to grow by 9 per cent year-on-year through fiscal 2020. Medicine spending in
India is expected to increase at 9-12 per cent CAGR between 2018-22 to US$ 26-30 billion, driven by
increasing consumer spending, rapid urbanisation, and raising healthcare insurance among others. The
Indian government has taken many steps to reduce costs and bring down healthcare expenses. Speedy
introduction of generic drugs into the market has remained in focus and is expected to benefit the Indian
pharmaceutical companies. In addition, the thrust on rural health programmes, lifesaving drugs and
preventive vaccines also augurs well for the pharmaceutical companies.
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1.4. Hospital Products- Blood Bags:

The Global disposable Blood Bag Market is expected to reach $580 Million by 2023 growing at a CAGR
of 11.0% from 2017 to 2023. Blood bags manufacturers and easy availability of value-added products for
blood collection are expected to boost growth of the global disposable plastic blood bags market.

In view of the robust industrial projections and higher budgetary allocations by the Government for
healthcare schemes and projections, the overall business opportunities for HLL appears to be optimistic
for HLL during the FY 2017-18.

1.5 Diagnostic Services:

The Country has become one of the leading destinations for high-end diagnostic services with tremendous
capital investment for advanced diagnostic facilities thus catering to a greater proportion of population.
is progressively expanding backed on increasing awareness about preventive healthcare which scale up
new opportunities for established players in smaller towns and cities.

Though a large part of the industry is clubbed as unorganized, yet organized diagnostic facilities are
slowly expanding and offering diagnostic services and preventive healthcare packages across Tier Il and
Tier Ill cities. These cities offer a large untapped potential, a high unmet need and an educated middle
class population that is becoming more sophisticated seeking preventive healthcare check-ups.

1.6 Retail Pharmacy :

The Retail pharmacy market in India has witnessed an unprecedent growth in the recent years. Indian retail
pharmacy market is majorly driven by small and organized pharmacy stores in the Country. The Pharmacy
sector in India has been rapidly evolving over the years with establishment of new pharmacies across the
Country. The Retail Pharmacy market in India has grown at CAGR of 19.4% for the period 2017. With
an increase in penetration of organized players, the market has become highly competitive, and hence
innovative marketing strategies and new business models are being introduced in the market. HLL’s Retail
Business Division (RBD) had been setting up and operating their retail Pharmacies since the past 7 years
offering drugs, pharmaceuticals, surgical consumable and implants etc. to the patients at considerable
discounts from MRP. AMRIT- Deendayal Prime Minister Jan Aushadhi Store is an ambitious program
conceived and implemented by Govt. of Gujarat to provide generic medicines at affordable prices. AMRIT
Deendayal Prime Minister Jan Aushadhi Store pharmacy reflects Govt. of Gujarat’s strong commitment to
reduce the cost of treatment or out-of- pocket expenditure for the patients. Lakhs of patients will benefit
from this initiative. Deendayal Prime Minister Jan Aushadhi Store would be selling generic drugs, and
implants at very affordable prices. Patients can buy medicines and implants at up to 80 percent cheaper
prices than the open market from Deendayal Prime Minister Jan Aushadhi Store.
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5. PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE

HLL is a leading manufacturer and marketer of a range of contraceptive products around the globe. It also
provides a variety of hospital products, pharma products and healthcare delivery services.

A review of HLL's manufacturing activities during 2017-18 is given below:

Sl
No.

. Capacity

Product Unit Installed Capacity ﬁljlizcitgxsl\/lyaer::;actured utilization
(%)
Condoms M.pcs 1876.00 (gjggg) 98%
Blood Bags M.pcs 12.50 (;'gg) 59%

1.31

Suture L. Doz 6.00 (2.03) 22 %
Copper - T M.pcs 5.50 é'?g) 43%

. Million 96.80 43.78 9
Sterioidal OCP cycle 43.78 (34.91) 45%
Non-Steroidal OCP Million 41.37 o
(Sahel) Tablets 30.00 (32.96) 196%
Sanitary Napkin M.pcs 392.00 é?;gg) 64%

12.55 o
Pregnancy Test Card M. pcs 26.00 (12.55) 48%

6. MAJOR MARKETING INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

Your Company focused to continue with the modern marketing practices viz Digital marketing, E Commerce
to strengthen domestic and global presence. We are also striving to establish ourselves in the service of
diagnostic healthcare.

The significant marketing initiatives and achievements of the Company during the year 2017-18 are stated

below:

Relaunched MOODS deodorants in a new youthful range of fragrances and packaging which
registered a sale of ¥ 2.56 Cr.

MOODS was introduced on online pharmacies — Netmeds.com and leading online grocery stores
-Grofers.

Entry of MOODS condoms, personal lubricants and Velvet into leading organized retail chains such
as WH Smith, Big Bazaar, Reliance Retail.

Launched new variants of Happy Days sanitary napkins — Extra large and Ultra to increase the
range of offerings to the consumers.

Participated in 6" National Conference TRANSMEDCON 2017 in Lucknow, from November 3" to
5%, 2017 organized by Indian Society of Transfusion Medicine.

A mega Voluntary Blood Donation (VBD) Programme was organised at Peroorkada HLL Sargam
Hall, Peroorkada in association with Citizens India Foundation (CIF) on 14" June 2017 on the
occasion of World Blood Donor Day.

Co- Branding of Blood Banks-Glow Sign Board at Stanley hospital Chennai CO- Branding at
G Kuppuswamy Naidu Hospital and IMA Kanpur.
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e Hand hygiene campaign was conducted to create awareness among patients about nosocomial
infection.

e Patient awareness programs were conducted to create awareness on topics like Breastfeeding and
dos and don’ts after caesarean.

e Celebrated Global Hand Washing Day on 15" October 2017 to create awareness among OT staffs
about scrubbing technique.

e Launched Hinstat internal haemostat in January 2018.

e Participated in 77" ASICON in December 2017 at Jaipur.

e Participated in 615t AICOG in January 2018 at Bhubaneswar.

e Taken up new Business - procurement & supply of Drugs to CGHS and .

e Got new entry in Karnataka state (Karnataka State Drugs & Logistics) for the supply of Ayush
products in nomination basis under 4G exemption and got orders worth ¥ 5 Cr.

e Got new entry in NCT, Delhi ( Education Department) for the supply of Sanitary Napkins in 17-18 .

e Launch of Hilgestrone 200 SR (Sustained Release Tab) a new SKU in Hilgestrone brand (oral
Progestrone) in WHD-Ethical Division.

e Established 45 new AMRIT pharmacies taking the total count of AMRIT to 128 spanning across 22
states.

e As on 31t March 2018 AMRIT has served 62.85 Lac patients who have benefitted with a savings
of . 325.19 Crores.

e Received and successfully executed orders worth ¥ 37 Cr from Ministry of External Affairs for
procurement and supply of drugs to Syria, Yemen, Mozambique, Tanzania, Somalia, Madagascar
and Swaziland.

e Successfully implemented various projects for installation of Sanitary Napkin Vending Machines
and Incinerators - 350 nos in schools, colleges and other public locations across the country under
the CSR initiative of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL) and Hindustan Zinc Limited
(HZL).

e Installed 400 Sanitary Napkin Vending Machines and Incinerators in Tribal girls hostels in
association with Tribal Welfare Department, Madhya Pradesh.

e |Installed 600 Sanitary Napkin Incinerators and supplied sanitary napkins as part of the SHE PAD
project in association with Kerala State Women Development Corporation(KSWDC)

e Over 3200 Sanitary Napkin Vending Machines and 3800 Incinerators have been installed in FY
2017-18.

7. RISKS AND CONCERNS

e Risk: HLL is highly dependent on Government and Government organization for business. Loss of
‘preferred vendor to government’ status may impact HLL’s vision and strategies significantly.

e Mitigation plan: The Company plans to mitigate this risk by two-pronged strategies of ‘introducing
new products and services’ and ‘continuously increasing market share’, which are low to medium
risk strategies.
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e Risk: Increasing levels of compliance required for both export and domestic markets increases cost
of products and services.

e Mitigation plan: The Company is confident of mitigating this risk by establishing dedicated teams to
ensure compliance with applicable regulations in target territories.

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Given the nature of business and size of operations, your Company’s internal control system has been
designed to provide for:

e Compliance with applicable statutes, policies and management policies and procedures.
e Effective use of resources and safeguarding of assets.

e Accurate recording of transactions with internal checks and prompt reporting.

e Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

The Internal Control system provides for well documented policies/guidelines, authorizations and approval
procedures. The Company through independent firms of Chartered Accountants and its own Corporate
Audit Service Division (CAS),department carries out periodic audits at all locations and functions based
on the plan approved by Audit Committee and brings out any deviation to internal control procedures. The
summary of Internal Audit observations and status of implementation are submitted to the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The status of implementation of the recommendations is
reviewed by the Audit Committee on the regular basis and concerns, if any, are reported to the Board. All
the issues raised by them have been suitably acted upon and followed up. Proper systems are in place to
ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company. The Company continues its efforts to align all its
processes and controls with best global practice.

9. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Directors Report and Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, expectations and estimates are based on current business environment. Many
factors could cause the actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be materially
different from any future results, performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such
forward looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue conviction on the forward looking
statements.

For and on behalf of Board of directors

Dr R K Vats IAS
13" August 2018 Chairman & Managing Director
New Delhi [DIN: 01625253]
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Achievement of MOU 2017-18 Targets Annexure |
SI. No. MoU Parameters MoU Target for Excellent Actual
529.6
1 Capacity Utilization: Condoms (For Private orders) 486.75 Million Pieces Million
Pieces

2 Exports as a percentage of Revenue from operations (Net) 1% 6%

3 L_aL_Jnchlng of Internal Hemostat- Raising the first invoice / 31.01.18 25.01.18
billing to a client
Percentages qf value of CAF_’EX co_ntracts/ projects running/ % 43.00 Cr % 23.96 Cr.

4 completed during the year without time/cost overrun to total 100.00% 55,729
value of CAPEX contracts running/completed (%) (ews) ()
Trade Receivables (Net) as number of days of Revenue

5 ) 180 181
from Operations (Gross)

6 Reductlo“n in clalnms against the Company not acknowledged 5 Not Achieved
as debt—"Others
Increase in number of existing Pharma Retail Stores as on

7 31.03.2018 40 stores 49 stores
On-line submission of ACR/APAR in respect of all execu-

8 tives (EO and above) along with compliance of prescribed 100% 100%
timelines w.r.t writing of ACR/APAR
Online Quarterly vigilance clearance updation for Senior o o

& Executives (AGM and above) ol ot

10 P_reparatlon of succession plan and its approval by Board of 30.09.2017 27.03.2018
Directors

1 Holding of DPC without delay for eligible executives (EO and 100% 100%
above level)

12 HR Audit and Board decision on the findings of HR audit 31.12.17 Not achieved
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Annexure Il

Form No. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31st
2018, which were not on arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm’s length basis for the year ended
31t March 2018 are as follows:

. Salient
Duration of i— Amount paid
Name (s) of the related Party & Nature of contract/ arrange- contract/ including the Date of Board as a dvar?ce
Nature of relationship ments/ transactions arrangem_entsl value, if any approval, if any if any
transactions )
(X in lacs)
Hindustan Latex Family Sales NA 370.67 13.8.2018 Nil
Planning Promotion Trust
(HLFPPT)- Associate
Rental Income NA 47.06 Nil
Other Expenses NA 56.77 Nil
Sundry Debtors NA 341.38 Nil
Life Spring Hospitals Other Expense NA 3.69 13.8.2018 Nil
Private Limited- Joint ven-
ture Company
Sundry Debtors NA 22.02 Nil
Investment in shares NA 950.76 Nil
HLL Biotech Limited - Sub- Sales Commission NA 18.61 13.8.2018 Nil
sidiary company
Salaries & allowances NA 29.23 Nil
Consultancy/ Service NA 32.76 Nil
Other expenses NA 29.44 Nil
Sundry debtors NA 181.27 Nil
Goa Antibiotics & Pharma- Investment in shares NA 27489.00 Nil
ceuticals Limited
-Subsidiary company
Other expenses NA 334.36 13.8.2018 Nil
Salaries & allowances NA 47.19 Nil
Investment in shares NA 708.75 Nil
Other liabilities NA 219.34 Nil
Sundry debtors NA 52.97 Nil
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HLL Medipark Limited Investment in shares NA 10.01 13.8.2018 Nil
- Subsidiary company
Rental Income NA 11.12 Nil
Sundry Debtors NA Nil
188.90
Salaries & allowances NA 53.90 Nil
Other Expense NA 4.47 Nil
HLL Infra Tech Services Rental Income NA 297.35 13.8.2018 Nil
Limited
- Subsidiary company
Consultancy/ Service NA 9.00 Ni
Sundry debtors NA 181.87 Nil
Other Expense NA 262.86 Nil
Investment in shares NA 5.00 Nil
HLL Pratheeksha Charita- Other expenses NA Nil 13.8.2018 Nil
ble Society - Associate
Other liabilities NA 0.83 Nil
HLL Management Academy  Salaries & allowances NA 51.04 13.8.2018 Nil
— Society
Other Expenses NA 1.74 Nil
Sundry Debtors NA 175.36 Nil
HLL Mother & Child Care Other Expense NA 5.84 Nil
Hospitals Ltd. — Subsidiary 13.8.2018
Company
Sundry Debtors NA 14.84 Nil
Investment in shares NA 1.00 Nil
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Dr R K Vats IAS
Chairman & Managing Director
[DIN: 01625253]
13" August 2018
New Delhi
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Annexure Il

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018
of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN :U25193KL1966G0I1002621

ii) Registration Date :01/03/1966

iii) Name of the Company: HLL Lifecare Limited

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company

V) Address of the Registered Office and contact details:

HLL Bhavan, Mahilamandiram Road, Poojappura, Trivandrum-695 012

Vi) Whether listed company :No

vii)  Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any : N/A
Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

0,
Sl. No. Name and Description of main products/services NIC Code of the Product/service Hi tOtiLtnl::)n;::;er g
1. Contraceptive Products 29
2. Health Care Products 1
3. Trading Products 44
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Name and address Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of Shares Applicable
Sl of the Company LY Associate Held Section
Goa Antibiotics
1. & Pharmaceuti- U24231GA1980SGC000412 Subsidiary 74% 2(87)
cals Limited
2 HLL Infra Tech 14 5500k12014G01036617 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Services Limited
3 HLL Biotech Ltd. =~ U24290KL2012G0I1030732 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
4 EtbL Medipark 174999KL2016G01047562 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
HLL Mother
5 & Child Care U85200UP2017G0I1095591 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Hospitals Ltd.
6. Life Spring Hos- ;4541 0k1.2008PTC021819 Associate 50% 2(6)
pitals Pvt. Ltd.
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(v) et @t feert

T & uRw ¥ et a8 & 3id o fedet
®.9. B O L T TR A - amﬁéj FAIT A e |
IrERT @t | SRt 2 o Tt/ TR SRt S F el RE/ R aRae %
% gt w % Fo  IERE %
1 9Ra TFHR 290415000 100% - 290415000 100%

(vi) IRl @t et § ufitads ( afs ®ig uiads 7@t € o, FIar T &)

TN F RN § e T & TR GO feEr
w3 o ETRETE . o el & g v
TR wE =T R Y wE =T =
a5 % TR 290415000 100% 290415000 100%
Jhg/FHH & BROT HI fafHiee Fep a9
o SR THEIT S AN § aRiEeR
Ffg/wH (370, e/ R/
/329 gfeaet o) ¢
Y & 3iq o 290415000 100% 290415000 100%

(vii) 3= 9 IAUR®T &% IAATRAT WEY (ST S AR T T S AR & 297!, THEI AW
T & AeTTET)

T F URY § et aY * TR WO e
w4, I W 10 SRt & fag VAR H U F FA - HUA & HT
T TR HT % et TR B %
e o = v o _—
gg/FHA & HROT wl faFHEe wh
5 a9 % R TR § qREeaR g/
A (3T, S/ 0T/ 9/389
el o) ¢
oY o 3T T (AT AW % SN Il ST
3 Ao, s = ) T T T T
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(v) Shareholding of Promoters

. A Shareholding at the
Shareholding at the beginning of the year end of the year
%
% of %of change
Share holder’s . Y%of Shares ° Shares  In share
Sl No % of total total .
Name Pledged/ Pledged/  holding
Shares Shares .
No. of Shares encumbered  No. of Shares encum- during
of the of the
compan to total compa- bered the year
pany shares P to total
ny
shares
1 Govt. of India 290415000 100% - 290415000 100%  --

(vi) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during
the year the year
SINo % of total .
No. of shares Shares No. of shares el
of the of the company
company

At the beginning of the year 290415000 100% 290415000 100%

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters

Shareholding during the Year specifying

the reasons for increase/decrease (eg. allot-

ment/transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 290415000 100% 290415000 100%

(vii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders

of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning Cumulatlve Shareholding
No of the year during the year
% of
% of total total
No. of shares SENEE @ No. of shares SIEIES
the com- of the
pany compa-
ny
1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
2 Shareholding during the Year specifying the
' reasons for increase/decrease (eg. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):
3 At thg end of the year (or on the date of separa- Nil Nil Nil Nil
tion, if seperated during the year)
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(viii). FRITRT SR T TeierEa FHIEET ®T HAETRAT

a8 & URw ¥ e aE % IR GO feEw
.. I UAE v AT % uH ot % fow . o . U % He D &Y & T
TR @t =T e o TR @t =T St 2 %
oY & YR §
1) s 3R 9 @Ueare, o T & 100 100
2) st 30 gmEm, v 100 100
3) s AR, Y 100 T 100 s
4) e T e 100 100
5) st o9 SFRET 100 100
gig/FH & HRUT Hi Gfice wh v &
SR IR § aRiEaR gig/wH (38
S/ TAFICROT/ S /3EH Seed] 3e) T T T T
oy & 3 °
1 s aRH Evetem, @ vy & 100 100
2) st T.u.gsEveH, fRvs 100 100
3) st 7 IeER, PR 100 e 100 e
4)  ofiHar foern e 100 100
5) it g SR 100 100
ix). TEUT TEAAT W/SUTTAA AT Wed HUAT H FUTIRAAT, Ak W & 0 37 & |
(z @@t ®)
SHT Y
Brewt T;F' S T T
Tfqse T
foit o & e | T
i) T A i
i) 3 =, S ved @l Y e o '722:;1 - ° ,7¢5u21:a711
iii) ST =TT, iR °F et 89.97 i 89.97
et (itiiHii) 51,887.12 - - 51,887.12
foriia a9 & SR 0T T
T aiada ) ) )
. E 5,920.70 - - 5,920.70
et afraaT 5,920.70 - 5,920.70
fa=ita a9 & of | T T
) AT IR 45,866.6 ; ; 45,866.6
i) ST ST, ifeh Te Tél fohu T ° 79.95 - ° 79.92
iii) SOTteTa SATST, Al 97 &l 19.76 - - 19.76
Tl (i+Hi+Hii) 45,966.42 - - 45,966.42
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(viii). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the beginning of the year EEADSE P Dl i

ear
L For Each of the Directors and KMP i
No % of total shares of % of total shares
No. of shares No. of shares
the company of the company

At the beginning of the year

1) Shri R P Khandelwal, CMD 100 100
2) Shri E A Subramanian, Director 100 100
) ) . Negligible Negligible
3) Shri T Rajasekar, Director 100 100
4) Smt. Vijaya Srivastava 100 100
5) Shri. Lav Agarwal 100 100

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/

NIL NIL NIL NIL

decrease

(e.g. allotment /transfer/bonus/

sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year
1) Shri R P Khandelwal, CMD 100 100
2) Shri E A Subramanian, Director 100 100

Negligible Negligible

3) Shri T Rajasekar, Director 100 100
4) Smt. Vijaya Srivastava 100 100
5) Shri Lav Agarwal 100 100

ix). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

(X inlacs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total Indebted-
excluding deposits Loans ness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 51,744.41 - - 51,744.41
ii) Interest due but not paid 52.74 52.74
i) Interest accrued but not due 89.97 89.97
Total (i+ii+iii) 51,887.12 - - 51,887.12
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
+ Addition - - - -
* Reduction 5,920.70 - 5,920.70
Net Change 5,920.70 - 5,920.70
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 45,866.67 - 45,866.67
ii) Interest due but not paid 79.99 - 79.99
i) Interest accrued but not due 19.76 - 19.76
Total (i+ii+iii) 45,966.42 - 45,966.42
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (R in lacs)
Sl. . . ShriRP Shri. EA . .
No. Particulars of Remuneration Khandelwal* Subramanian Shri T Rajasekar Total
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section17(1)
of the Income tax Act, 27.09 20.97 20.90 68.96
1961]
(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act,1961 3.45 21 1.98 7.53
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) of Income Tax Act ) )
1961 Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Commission
- as % of profit ) ) ) )
- others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) 30.54 23.07 22.88 76.49
Ceiling as per the Act
*Shri R PKhandelwal has superannuated from the Company w.e.f 31*May, 2018.
B Remuneration to other directors: (. in lacs)

Sl Total Amount
No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
1. Independent Directors Ms. Aradhana Johri *
* Fee for attending board/ 1.30
commlltte.e meetings 130
* Commission
e  Others, please specify
Nil
Total (1) 1.30 1.30
2. Other Non- Executive Directors
*  Fee for attending board/ Nil
committee meetings
e Commission Nil
*  Others, please specify Nil
Total (2) Nil
Total (B)=(1+2) 1.30 1.30
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
* Consequent to resignation, Ms Aradhana Johri has ceased to be Director on 17" July, 2018.
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(z @i H)
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T e Hudl |faa | U e el
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C REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

(zinlacs)
:(I;' Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Sompany CFO Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions N.A 25.64 18.85 44.49

contained in section 17(1) of the

Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Nil 1.66 1.66

Income tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil

section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission

- gir:/ér?f E’éi_’fc"atfy... Nil Nil il
5 Others, please specify

Total 25.64 20.51 46.15

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Details
Section.of Brief I?escrip- IP?anli::l?;lgltl Authority[RD Ai';’;iayl (Eiidee’
Type the Companies Act tion fees imposed INCLT/ Court] Details)
Compounding
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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faeamaRs
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Sfrettame 002621) (g | ST el ST 8) 3R 1 Fifarsh Weem & S 31X 375 HigRe T o arer
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3fad SR TH WS hAT 3R 39 W gURT I Wehe i Sl ik § SIS |

% FAMT & 3R W 3R HU FRT &9 i KT T A1 U6 TR & SFER, &0 TaggRT RUie 3 & {6 i 1
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Annexure. IV

BVR & ASSOCIATES “Swastika”, TR/53/3933, Lal Salam Road

Company secretaries LLP Off Convent Road, Ponnurunni
Vytila P.O., Cochin-682019

Ph : 0484-4046696, +91 98956 30786

LLP Identification Number : AAE-7079 email : info@directus.co.in

Form No: MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

CIN: U25193KL1966G0I1002621.

HLL Bhavan Mahilamandiram Road, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram,

Kerala- 695012, INDIA

We, BVR & ASSOCIATES Company Secretaries LLP, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by M/s.
HLL LIFECARE LIMITED [CIN: U25193KL1966G0I1002621] (hereinafter called “the Company”). The
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
produced to us and according to information and explanations given to us by the Company, its officers,
agents, and authorised representatives during the conduct of the secretarial audit, we hereby report that,
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2018
complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Rules made there under, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and also applicable provisions of the laws as
mentioned in Annexure 1, standards, guidelines etc. and also the Company has proper Board processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations framed there under
(iv) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made there under

2. We have relied on the representations made by the company and its officers for systems and
mechanisms formed by the company for compliances under industry specific applicable Acts, Laws
and regulations to the company. The list of other major head/Groups of Acts, Laws and Regulations as
applicable to the company is given in Annexure 1.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, to the extent
applicable.

The Company being an unlisted company the listing agreements are not applicable to the company.
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We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director during the year. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with payment of fee/additional fees.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda are sent at least seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. Majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment,
their being independent and compliance with the code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and
Management Personnel and also with regard to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and
arrangements, shareholdings/debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in
other entities.

We report that, during the year under review:

1. The amount borrowed by the Company from its bank(s)/ financial institution(s) and others were
within the borrowing limits of the Company. Such borrowings were made by the Company in
compliance with applicable laws.

2. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of unsecured loans, facilities granted by
bank(s)/financial institution(s) and non-banking financial companies. The Company has not issued
Debentures and collected Public Deposits.

3. All registrations under the various state and local laws as applicable to the company are valid as
on the date of report.

4. The Company has not allotted any shares during the period under scrutiny.

5. The Company has not declared dividend to its shareholder during the period under scrutiny. The
Company has no unpaid dividend during the financial year due for transfer to Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

6. The Company has paid all its statutory dues and satisfactory arrangements have been made for
arrears of any such dues.

7. The Company has provided a list of statutes in addition to the laws as mentioned above and it has
been observed that there are systems in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the
company.

We further report that;
There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Trivandrum
Date: 13" August 2018 For BVR & Associates Company
Secretaries LLP

ACS Gokul R |
Designated Partner
ACS No. A21269
C P No.14245
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This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of
this report.

To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,
M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Trivandrum For BVR & Associates Company Secreatries LLP

Date: 13" August 2018

ACS Gokul R |
Designated Partner
ACS No. A21269
C P No. 14245
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Annex 1

List of Industry specific laws applicable to the company

-

The Factories Act, 1948

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

Legal Metrology Act, 2009

Sexual Harassment of Women at the work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Prohibition of Sex Selection) Act, 1994

© ® N o gk w N

Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

Place: Trivandrum
Date: 13" August 2018 For BVR & Associates Company
Secretaries LLP

ACS Gokul R |
Designated Partner
Mem No. A21269
C P No.14245
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K VARGHESE & CO.

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE V
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of HLL Lifecare Limited

We have examined the Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by HLL Lifecare Limited for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2018, as stipulated by DPE OM No. 18(8)/2005- GM dated May 14, 2010.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information to the explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned DPE O.M. except
in the following case,

The number of Independent Director in the Audit Committee is one person against two persons (two third of the
members) as required.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For K Varghese & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 004525S)

Sam Varghese
Partner
(Membership N0.216979)

New Delhi
August 13, 2018

Sageti Business Centre, I Floor, Choolackal Building, Opp. Metro Plaza, North Market Road,
Ernakulam-682 014
Tel: 0484-2398398, 92497 67030, 92872 70400 , Fax: 0474-2746083
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K VARGHESE & CO. Sageti Business Centre, 1I™ Floor, Choolackal Building,
Chartered Accountants Opp. Metro Plaza, North Market Road, Ernakulam-682 014

Tel: 0484-2398398, 92497 67030, 92872 70400 ,
Fax: 0474-2746083

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
HLL Lifecare Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of HLL Lifecare Limited (“‘the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the Financial position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income,
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards( Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the Standalone Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As stated in note no 2.29, the Company has entered into an agreement for the construction of a medical college
at Paripally for Employees’ State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) and handed over the same to ESIC on October
21, 2016. On this contract an amount of ¥ 12374 lacs is due from ESIC and shown under Trade Receivables
as on March 31, 2018. Out of this an amount of ¥ 8599 lakh is outstanding for more than 3 years and there is
no confirmation available from ESIC, further ESIC has raised a claim on the Company to extent of ¥ 9293 lacs.
In our opinion, due to the above mentioned facts, provision should have been created in the accounts for the
Trade Receivables amounting to 12374 lacs. This has resulted in the overstatement of Trade Receivables by
% 12374 lacs, understatement of loss for the year and accumulated loss by ¥ 12374 lacs.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to:

1. Note 2.12 regarding the uncertainty on final prices applicable for supplies to Government of India during
the year 2016-17 and 2017-18, as the same is yet to be notified by the Government and accordingly the
effect of the same has not been considered in the Financial Statements; and in respect of supplies for
the previous years, though the Government has sought recovery of price difference from the Company
to the extent of ¥ 5193 lacs, the Company has raised objections and has not provided for the same in
the Financial Statements.

2. Note 2.13 wherein it is stated that no impairment loss is estimated in respect of investments in the joint
venture of M/s Lifespring Hospitals (P) Ltd on account of various factors mentioned therein.

3. Note 2.22 regarding recoverability of dues from M/s Gujarat Arogya Seva (P) Limited (GASPL) amount-
ing to ¥ 1195 lacs shown under Current Financial Assets and % 827 lacs shown as trade receivable from
Gujarat Medical Services Corporation Limited (GMSCL), though company has received % 1500 lacs as
advance from GMSCL.

4. Note 2.30 Current Financial Assets — others (unsecured considered good) includes an amount of % 485
lakh towards KVAT receivables on account of input tax paid for the export of finished goods which was
rejected by the Kerala Commercial Taxes Department against which the Company had filed an appeal in
the Hon. High Court of Kerala, where in the opinion of the Management the amount is recoverable. Out
of this ¥ 326 lacs is outstanding for more than 3 years.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards, included in the Standalone Financial Statements, have
been audited by the predecessor auditor. The report of the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial
information dated August 22, 2017 expressed a modified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Gov-
ernment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in Annexure C, on the basis of such checks of the
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books and the records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the informations
and explanations given to us, the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India.

3. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d. Inouropinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

e. The matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect
in the functioning of the Company.

f.  Vide notification No. GSR 463(E) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5 June, 2015, provisions
of sub-section (2) of section 164 regarding disqualification of directors are not applicable to the compa-

ny;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report;

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements - Refer Note 32 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. Except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the
Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company except for an amount of 0.10 lacs which are held in abeyance
due to pending legal cases- Refer Note 2.4 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

For K. VARGHESE & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 004525S)

Sam Varghese
Partner
(Membership No. 216979)

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 13, 2018
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Report)

Vii.

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including the quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The company has a regular programme for physical verification in a phased periodic manner, which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)
(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees
and security.

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules, 2014 (as amended). However, we report that
an amount of ¥ 10,000 accepted during earlier period is outstanding under fixed deposit not repaid due to
dispute between legal heirs.

i. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made

by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, related to the manufacturing activities, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts
and records have been made and maintained. \We have not however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Goods and Services
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, value Added Tax, Cess and Other statutory Dues
applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations provide to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service Tax, Sales-Tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of Income-Tax, Sales- Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Cess which have not been deposited on March 31, 2018
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Annual Report 2017-2018 149




[T b bt R by

iR 1 A YA R e o A R B P W‘T@TM)
o B AfRFRE 1961 g R < o &) (ardier) 2008-09 10.12
I R AfAfraH 1961 AT IR S IEEIN 2009-10 18.28
MY B SAFIH1961 3 IR S IEEIN] 2010-11 11.45
MY B SAFIH1961 3T IR S IEEIY] 2011-12 34.96
3T IR AffEE 1961 3T IR At g < (ardten) 2011-12 24.62
3T IR AfFEE 1961 3T IR A g < (ardter) 2012-13 32.41
T B ARVFTH 1961 37F IR At o < (arfien) 2013-14 75.34
M HR AT 1961 37T IR &t ang & (arfien) 2014-15 51.72
T B AFTH 1961 377F IR At 3 < (ardien) 2010-11 7.83
I B ARFTH 1961 371g o At 3 < (ardien) 2011-12 1.28
oo ey fawm, el % g/é?f Sl m;gw 2015-16 590.05
oo ex fwm, e % g/é—c’ Sl m;gw 2014-15 6.59
aiforfoe ex fawm, e % g/éz Sl m;gm 2013-14 1316.07
aiforfoe ey fwm, el % g/ag o m;gw 2012-13 379.75
m ) fawm, % aag/é?:’ 3R mﬁw 2009-10 956
ﬁ_@m &Y fawr, = % aag/éﬁ R mgﬁm 2009-10 3.54
T Yo AfRIFT 1962 T Yo ?’afg%)\”‘”'q" TP ST 2007-08 43.38
forT arfaifere |, 1994 Ja1 B &9_‘;%)‘3‘”'“ NESER 2009-11 10.76
firer o | 1994 S e m)dﬂld"l Yo 3D 202151-2;313 858.74

150 aees e 2017-2018



HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations |

Period to
whichthe ~Amount
Nature of Statute Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute pending amount involved
(% in lacs)
relates
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2008-09 10.12
The Income Tax
Act, 1961 Income tax ITAT 2009-10 18.28
The Income Tax
Act, 1961 Income tax ITAT 2010-11 11.45
The Income Tax
Act, 1961 Income tax ITAT 2011-12 34.96
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2011-12 24.62
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2012-13 32.41
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2013-14 75.34
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2014-15 51.72
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2010-11 7.83
The Income Tax
Act 1961 Income tax CIT ( Appeals) 2011-12 1.28
Commercial Taxes, Sales tax/ VAT and Asst Commissioner of Commercial Tax
Department of Kerala Entry Tax Audit YLD ST
Commercial Taxes, Sales tax/ VAT and Asst Commissioner of Commercial Tax 2014-15 6.59
Department of Kerala Entry Tax Audit ’
Commercial Taxes, Sales tax/ VAT and Asst Commissioner of Commercial Tax
Department of Kerala Entry Tax Audit AUESES s
Commercial Taxes, Sales tax/ VAT and Asst Commissioner of Commercial Tax 2012-13 379.75
Department of Kerala Entry Tax Audit ’
Commercial Taxes, De- Sales tax/ VAT and Asst. Commissioner of Commercial Tax 2009-10 956
partment of Hyderabad Entry Tax Audit ’
Commercial Taxes, De- Sales tax/ VAT and Asst. Commissioner of Commercial Tax 2009-10 354
partment of Karnataka  Entry Tax Audit ’
The Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty Gl See @) CEiE] 2k 2007-08 43.38
(Appeals)
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax Commissioner of Central Excise 2009-11 10.76
(Appeals)
. ) Commissioner of Central Excise 2015-16 &
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax (Appeals) 2016-17 858.74
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viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or government or dues
to debenture holders.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the
Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which these loans were obtained.

x. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
Financial Statements and according to the information and explanations provided by the management,
we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. In view of exemption given Vide notification No. GSR 463(E) dated June 5, 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act regarding managerial
remuneration are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable
and hence not commented upon.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii. According to the information and explanations provided by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations provided to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

xv. According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013.

.According to the information and explanations provided to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

XV

For K. VARGHESE & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 004525S)

Sam Varghese
Partner
(Membership No. 216979)

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 13, 2018
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HLL Lifecare Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company'’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

Annual Report 2017-2018 155




"'l TAUAUA aATshaeR fafdes
_'l e Wit & e aaeser NIEININININIEC:ECGLS

g1 3R 3. du @t uRFURTE & rIed IS, SUANT AT UHRT & AHAM AT FAT TR @I, I Fafd Ifaa amears
y&T He, e facfia v w gwer g gnm |

facia Raifé o= siaRe frisor @t ke Wi
Pl a1 =0 & gfud ydge R @1 dwrear dfed faxiia Ruifén w siaRe foxia fFrizor o1 ffea Al
PRI, FfE AT GRATEST I FET T fIaR0T I B Fhl § 3R Ul Al oA S Fpar g1 A g, 9fiosy @l sy &

fo facfra Rafé = sriaRe o s & foeft Joaie &1 o SiRew & <efie & f5 Rufoal # qeema & aror
ot Raifén o= erfaRe® faxfra FrizoT sroafa g1 S a1 -ifcral a1 gfshamsii & |1 argurea @t i3 @vE 81 Ja! © |
ufader =

TARY X #, dul, 7 Red o fEdiom (/IR & ) ok w@ReaRe 9arg ( UENigE) % A Bl BIedN oEl Sel
THIHRU] o Gy H =01 worqa fear S 8, a4l goer ueqst J, faxiiy Ruifén w yaia aiaRe faxiia frizor g, sk
YRR Fe] oRIThR R gRT SIR) &1 A i Raifén w araRe oy frismr aamadien w arifader [ 8§
aifaRe FrRI=0 & sawds gcdl W AR avd gu, du g1 wRenfia fa<ia Rulfé amds w eiaRs frizm & smur
TR, foha Raifé o= O sriaRe fa<iia fi=or 31 | 2018 T T9Tdt 0 | Tarel- B I8 O | 89 3 ggard & TR ucdel
FHOIRT TR IR fear iR 31 71, 2017 &I T 99 & ford Hu=i & sl YRA oIGidh A & i farvo &

FAR oRATOReT H§ AF] {5 T Saralen wievi o ey, 99a iR dM1 @1 FeRer axe § e RuE 3 7 iR 39
el PHVINI Ul b s HRAR oRdih= HFd] & AT faRor R 9R) X7 g9ifad F8f &oxer 2|

P & I YOS B
SEEIRSICIEAN
(Uh 3R . 004525174)

A i
RIE RS

(Fewgar 9. 216979)
R ;A3 faeett
foeie : 13 IR, 2018

156 aees e 2017-2018




& 4 y .o
[’ # — HLL Lifecare Limited
] Y 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations [ NN

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion the Company has, except in the case of Retail Business Division(RBD) and Health Care
Services(HCS), where controls with respect to data integration needs to be strengthened, in all material
respects an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K. VARGHESE & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 004525S)

Sam Varghese
Partner
(Membership No. 216979)

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 13, 2018
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Annexure ‘C’

To The Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of HLL Lifecare Limited

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”

Audit Report on the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018 as per the directions of
C&AG under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

3 C & AG Directions

No.

1. Whether the Company has clear title/lease deeds for
freehold and leasehold land respectively? If not, please
state the area of freehold and leasehold land for which
title/lease deeds are not available.

2 Please report whether there are any cases of waiver/
write off of debts/loans/interest etc. if yes, the reasons
therefore and the amount involved.

& Whether proper records are maintained for inventories
lying with third parties and assets received as gift from
Government or other authorities

Comments of Statutory Auditor

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations provided to us, the Company has clear
title/lease deeds for freehold and leasehold lands
respectively.

There are 29 cases where claims amounting to
%34.39 lacs, being irrecoverable have been written
off. Amount of ¥ 34.39 lacs adjusted towards provi-
sion created against the same in earlier years.

The Company is maintaining proper records for in-
ventories lying with third parties. As informed, the
Company has not received any asset as gift from
Government/other authorities.

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 13, 2018

For K. VARGHESE & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 004525S)

Sam Varghese
Partner
(Membership No. 216979)
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Office of the Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-1V, New Delhi
No. 712-PDCA/MAB-IV/HS/A/cs/HLL Lifecare (Standalone)/18-19/4667

Date 20.09.2018

CONFIDENTIAL
To
The Chairman and Managing Director,
HLL Lifecare Limited
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012
Sub: Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143 (6) (b) of Companies Act
2013 on the Financial Accounts of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Sir,

Nil Comments Certificate on the Financial Accounts of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31
March 2018 under Section 143 (6) (b) of Companies Act 2013 is being sent with this letter.

The receipt of the letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully

(Maneesh Kumar)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-IV

Encl: As above

8th & 9th Floor, Annexure Building, 10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel: 23239413, 23239415, 23239420, Fax: 23239416
Email: mabNewdelhi4@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTTON
143(6) (B) OF THE COMPANTES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HLL LIFECARE
LIMITEDFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,20I3 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5)read with section 129 (4) of the Act is/are responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (a) of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act.
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 13th August 2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018 under section 143(6)(a) of the
Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the
statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a
selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to
any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India

(Maneesh Kumar)
Place : New Delhi Principal Director of Commercial Audit
Date : 20.09.2018 & Ex-officio Member Audit Board -1V, New Delhi
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2018

. Note As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars No.
(% lacs) (% lacs)
A ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 35,100.35 24,750.61
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,188.24 10,878.31
Intangible Assets 8 685.58 710.30
36,974.17 36,339.22
Financial Assets
i) Investments 4 29,166.52 29,165.52
ii) Others 5 451.63 463.17
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 183.60 658.06
Other Non Current Assets 7 1,015.58 1,163.29
67,791.50 67,789.26
Current assets
Inventories 8 17,391.94 15,365.71
Financial Assets
i) Trade Receivables 9 53,271.20 54,877.69
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10.a 4,005.34 2,451.80
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10.b 224 .45 338.09
iv) Others 1 7,808.40 7,085.08
Other current assets 12 819.92 679.40
83,521.25 80,797.77
Assets classified as held for sale 10.26 13.46
Cash and Bank Balances of Projects Held 99,975.31 100,720.70
under Trust as per contra
TOTAL ASSETS 251,298.32 249,321.19
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
i) Equity Share Capital 13 29,041.50 29,041.50
ii) Other Equity 14 15,884.34 22,946.09
44,925.84 51,987.59
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 15 8,093.43 10,280.16
if) Other Non Current Liabilities 16 44.66 1,444.66
8,138.09 11,724.82
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 17 34,817.12 38,563.93
ii) Trade payables 18 34,357.76 27,474 .41
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iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 28,158.78 17,944.05
Provisions 20 925.42 905.69
98,259.08 84,888.08
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for - -
sale
Advances Received for Projects Held under Trust as per contra 99,975.31 100,720.70
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 251,298.32 249,321.19
Corporate Information and significant Accounting Policies 1
Additional Disclosures/Explanatory Notes to Financial Statements 2
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Vide our report of even date attached
For K. Varghese & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0045258
Dr. R.K. Vats IAS E.A. Subramanian P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Sam Varghese
Chairman & Director (T&O) Company Secretary & SVP(CAS) SVP(F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director  [DIN: 06818313] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No:216979
[DIN : 01625253]
New Delhi
13-08-2018
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
A. Equity Share Capital

T lacs
Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2017 Changes in equity share capital Balance at the end of March 31,
during the year 2018
29,041.50 - 29,041.50
B. Other Equity T lacs
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars SIETD iU General Retained Total
pending Equalisation .
Reserve Earnings
allotment Reserve
Balance as on April 01, 2017 129.74 25,821.25 (3,004.90) 22,946.09
Adjustments - (109.19)
Profit for the year (6,958.34)
Other comprehensive income (5.78)
Total comprehensive income (6,952.56)
Dividend including tax thereon -
Balance at the end of March 31, 2018 - 129.74 25,821.25 (10,066.65) 15,884.34
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Vide our report of even date attached
For K. Varghese & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0045258
Dr. R.K. Vats IAS E.A. Subramanian P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Sam Varghese
Chairman & Director (T&O) Company Secretary & SVP(CAS) SVP(F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director [DIN: 06818313] [FCS: 5875] [FCA : 26723] Membership No:216979
[DIN : 01625253]
New Delhi
13-08-2018

Annual Report 2017-2018 169



"l TAUAUA aATshaeR fafdes
_'l g G & e aamver N

31 |, 2018 &t GHIE a¥ T ATH-BT0 foraor

31-03-2018 =t 31-03-2017
F F“‘:"ﬁ | W % GHTE a9
@t o ot °
AT
Tl et 2 107,538.27  105,434.98
3 3 2 1,316.49 1,035.73
T A 108,854.76  106,470.71
aq
T R e 1975017  22,888.44
=R i % 24 41217.80  39,934.73
R e =T S T iR SR i A T § aRad | 2 (2167.39)  (5,908.60)
TR e 104.48 763.97
et e = 26 15,263.64 15,201.24
ot T & 2,961.15 3,028.44
ST T R =T 3 5,134.24 3,860.54
o = A 30,969.24  26,142.92
S = 2,301.91 4,143.86
T = 11553524  110,055.54
fooiw =€ ST X & qd o/ (F) (6,680.48) (3,584.83)
fargre w¥ e (193.54) 474.68
FT & gg T/ (FTh) (6,486.94) (4,059.51)
E3E=2p)
e e (3.06) 118.73
e 47446 (1,640.04)
47140  (1,521.31)
ad 3 forw T/ (6,958.34)  (2,538.21)
I Ah AT
% () v w5 oy @ e % forw qrentiha =@l fear st 8.84 (1.25)
(i) T HaI & o H T F, [ A A1 &1 & o qAeriip e 582 043
fepam S
S ——— 5.78 (0.82)
o % forw et O A (6,952.56)  (2,539.03)
v i et (3)-_:;;(:—[10/- Faw i sifeed ) 21 g:ig; Egzg;;
IR AT R Fewqu er@ich=1 Afear 1
forii foeror % feu =mees feumfor/ sifair e 2

170 aees e 2017-2018



¥ 4
N~ 7
W

HLL Lifecare Limited
Innovating for Healthy Generations |

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018

Year ended Year ended
Particulars ":ﬁ:‘e 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(% lacs) (% lacs)
Income
Revenue from operations 21 107,538.27 105,434.98
Other income 22 1,316.49 1,035.73
Total Income 108,854.76 106,470.71
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 19,750.17 22,888.44
Purchases of stock-in-trade 24 41,217.80 39,934.73
Changes in inventories of finished goods,work-in-progress and 25 (2,167.39) (5,908.60)
stock-in-trade
Excise duty 104.48 763.97
Employee benefits expense 26 15,263.64 15,201.24
Finance costs 27 2,961.15 3,028.44
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 5,134.24 3,860.54
Other expenses 28 30,969.24 26,142.92
Contract Expenses 2,301.91 4,143.86
Total expenses 115,535.24 110,055.54
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional items and tax (6,680.48) (3,584.83)
Exceptional Items 29 (193.54) 474.68
Profit / (Loss) before tax (6,486.94) (4,059.51)
Tax expense:
Current tax expense for current year (3.06) 118.73
Deferred tax 474.46 (1,640.04)
471.40 (1,521.31)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (6,958.34) (2,538.21)
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 8.84 (1.25)
(ii) Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to (3.06) 0.43
profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income 5.78 (0.82)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (6,952.56) (2,539.03)
Earnings per share () - Basic (Face value of 3 10/- Share) 21 (2.40) (0.87)
- Diluted (2.40) (0.87)
Corporate Information and significant Accounting Policies 1
Additional Disclosures/Explanatory Notes to Financial Statements
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16.46
24.29
151.00

(1.00)
11.54

113.54
(5,469.21)

31.03.2017 =t
AT

z At |

(2,539.03)

(1,520.88)
3,860.54
2.36
(4.30)
(176.94)
3,028.44
(104.51)
2,545.69

(5,638.57)
5,386.92
(1,367.22)
(133.29)
(23.23)

8,281.05
(218.30)
(121.78)

132.08
8,843.35
(363.35)
8,480.00

(2,237.49)
(5,101.33)
19.41
104.51
176.94
(42.34)
(10.01)

12.28
184.50

(6.893.53)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
% lacs 3 lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year (6,952.56) (2,539.03)
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense 468.34 (1,520.88)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5,025.05 3,860.54
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment 2.65 2.36
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment (3.26) (4.30)
Dividend income (151.00) (176.94)
Finance costs 2,961.15 3,028.44
Interest income (24.29) (104.51)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 1,326.08 2,545.69
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (2,023.03) (5,638.57)
Trade receivables 1,606.49 5,386.92
Short-term loans and advances (723.32) (1,367.22)
Other current assets (140.52) (133.29)
Changes in other non-current assets 2.82 (23.23)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 6,883.35 8,281.05
Other current liabilities 10,158.79 (218.30)
Long-term provisions - (121.78)
Short-term provisions 19.73 132.08
Cash generated from operations 17,110.39 8,843.35
Net income tax (paid) / refunds 151.01 (363.35)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 17,261.40 8,480.00
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress 9,690.07 (2,237.49)
Purchase of PPE and intangible assets (15,475.11) (5,101.33)
Proceeds on sale of PPE and intangible assets 16.46 19.41
Interest income received 24.29 104.51
Dividend income received 151.00 176.94
Investment in Life Spring Hospitals Private Limited - (42.34)
Investment in HLL Medipark Limited - (10.01)
Investment (HLL Mother & Child Care Hospital) (1.00) -
Changes in other Financial Assets 11.54 12.28
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three 113.54 184.50
months)
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (5,469.21) (6,893.53)
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For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
% lacs 3 lacs
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment from non current borrowings (2,130.79) 7,039.92
Repayment from other longterm liabilities (1,400.00) 1,444.66
Repayment from current borrowings (10,582.96) (711.95)
Finance cost paid (2,961.15) (3,028.44)
Dividend paid - (387.07)
Tax on dividend - (78.80)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) (17,074.90) 4,278.32
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (5,282.71) 5,864.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (18,993.28) (24,858.06)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (24,275.99) (18,993.28)
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalents (24,275.44) (18,992.83)
Less: Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents as de- 0.55 0.45
fined in Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flow
Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined in Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash (24,275.99) (18,993.28)
Flow) included in Note 1.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year *
* Comprises:
(a) Cash on hand 169.04 108.34
(b) Balances with banks
(i) In Deposit account 2,861.10 320.58
(i) In current accounts 967.10 2,009.97
(iii) In EEFC accounts 7.54 12.46
(iv) In cash credit accounts (16,304.21) (16,008.79)
(v) In overdraft accounts (11,976.57) (5,435.84)
(24,275.99) (18,993.28)

Corporate Information and significant Accounting Policies
Additional Disclosures/Explanatory Notes to Financial Statements
1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in the Ind AS-7.
2) The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to confirm to this year’s presentation.
3) Cash Equivalents at the beginning and end of the year includes Bank Overdraft and Cash Credit repayable on demand.
4) Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of Rs. 99,975.31 lacs( previous year Rs.100,720.70 lacs)
are not included in the Cashflow.
5) Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing Activities.
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% lacs
Non - Cash Changes
A As at 1st April . Others on As at 31st
Particulars 2017 Cashflows Fair Value B March 2018
Adjustment o
Acqusition
Non c_urrent Borrowings (mcludmg current 13180.48 -2079.68 51.12 ) 11049.68
maturity of Non - Current Borrowings)
Current Borrowings 38563.93 -3746.81 - - 34817.12
51744.41 -5826.49 -51.12 - 45866.80
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Vide our report of even date attached
For K. Varghese & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0045258
Dr. R.K. Vats IAS E.A. Subramanian P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Sam Varghese
Chairman & Director (T&O) Company Secretary & SVP(CAS) SVP(F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director  [DIN: 06818313] [FCS: 5875] [FCA : 26723] Membership No:216979
[DIN : 01625253]
New Delhi
13-08-2018
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gRUT T & 3 ATl -
a»jw frit e @ vwgREi A W vmghww A
4. S o | HeE
(1) (2) (3) (4) (%)
31.03.2018 @& 31 @, 2017 7%
FFA-YUT TT | e el WAw
1. gfEet suwvo & faw
)
%) T 210 3fEaet vaw
T AR e 100.00  27,48,90.000  27,489.00  27,48,90.000 27,489.00
T TS GEEY et 100.00 5,00,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
e AT e 100.00 1,00,100 10.01 1,00,100 10.01
ﬁqaﬁ@i T A A RR W SR 460 o9 10,000 1.00 - -
TuAE z 100 3fEEet v
Tﬁ”"ﬁ s Rl T3 wTHeede 74.00 14,07,480 708.75 14,07,480 708.75
1) VI ITW

F)UAE 10 RES wER

(5 7 i;'q?’ )“'l‘””“'” HIERE Sl 50.00 85,79,929 950.76 85,79,929 950.76

n) =T

HTAT TATRT SHRZFR TAHES 0.16 20,000 2.00 20,000 2.00
T 29,166.52 29,165.52
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NOTE 4. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

Extent of . .
si. No. Name of the Body Corporate Holding No. ol: S.haresl Amcl>unt in No. of S_haresl Amcl>unt in
(%) nits 3 lacs Units T lacs
1) ) @) (4) (%)
As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Unquoted -Fully paid equity Shares
1 Investment in Equity Instruments
1) Subsidiaries
a) Equity Shares of 310 each
HLL Biotech Ltd. 100.00 274,890,000 27,489.00 274,890,000 27,489.00
HLL Infratech Services Ltd.(Refer Note 100.00 500,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
No. 2.20)
HLL Medipark Ltd. 100.00 100,100 10.01 100,100 10.01
H_LL_ Mother & Child Care Hospital 100.00 10,000 1.00 _ )
Limited
b) Equity Shares of 3100 each
(ER ARSI HTEIE R RS 7400 1,407,480 708.75 1407480  708.75
Limited
I1) Joint Ventures
a) Equity Shares of 310 each
Life Spring Hospital Pvt.Ltd (at cost)* 50.00 8,579,929 950.76 8,579,929 950.76
1ll) Others
Kerala Enviro Infrastructures Ltd. 0.16 20,000 2.00 20,000 2.00
Total 29,166.52 29,165.52
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feomuft 5. % ey ot uRwutEt-a=

31.03.2018 = 31.03.2017 a=
faaruT
&licik: ) ; @t o
ST, e qHer T
gl s 109.05 100.05
st R 342.58 363.12
451.63 463.17
SUgE A 9
TRl / StfuemTiat & 5
femutt 6.33 T TH-12 3@ X F FEAAT USRI
31.03.2018 =% 31.03.2017 =
; omEt W ; @@ o
SEIRTT R <gare (ferer)
%) SRR Y TTATd (1269.74) (1731.39)
) AT Y UG 1,269.74 2,205.85
474.46
M) T H shiee (T T 21 shiee ursraT) 183.60 183.60
183.60 658.06
31.03.2918 qh 31.03.20.17 E
z orEt o z orEt |
eI &Y (I9ar)/afEataat
TR (1269.74) (1731.39)
ST Y ST I oAl HGT o h U1 (1269.74) (1731.39)
AR T qREUTAT S ATl Wl % w THE
Wity T & (AW W= 393.63 710.06
3T Wi 3R T LIk & fole wae= 17.56
T & o greE 22.30 23.55
g R eI (A i feooh (i) =) 518.21 1.459.19
T 318.04 13.05
SEINTT Y TREUTTET S oAl & Hal & e T9 1,269.74 2,205.85
frae smeafia & (daaT)/afkEafa 474.46
feoott « (i) 31 =, 2018 o TuAT 3G Y BN W SO & aTell STRIRTT R gutd ¢ 2988.99 wg & | ey
AR X % ® 5 518.21 M o T o A7 ST ST sl WiHT deh o STeAiTe shY Haral Y= o 741 & |
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NOTE 5. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

As at 31.03.2018
Particulars
T lacs

Unsecured, Considered good
Security Deposits 109.05
Deferred Rent 342.58

Total 451.63
Of the above,
Due from Directors / Officers =

As at 31.03.2017

T lacs

100.05

363.12

463.17

NOTE 6. DISCLOSURES UNDER IND AS - 12 INCOME TAXES

As at 31.03.2018
Particulars .

Deferred tax asset (Net)

a) Deffered tax liabilities (1269.74)

b) Deffered tax assets 1,269.74

c) Unused tax credits (MAT credit entitlement) 183.60

Total 183.60
As at 31.03.2018
Particulars -
Deferred tax (liability) / asset
Depreciation (1269.74)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability (1269.74)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts 393.63
Provision for Non Moving Stock & Obsolete Stock 17.56
Provision for Bonus 22.30
Unused tax losses (See Note:(i ) below) 518.21
Others 318.04
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 1,269.74
Net deferred tax (liability) / asset -
Note: (i) Deferred Tax asset arising from cumulative unused tax losses as on 31st March 2018 amounts to ¥ 2988.99
lacs. However Deferred tax asset has been recognised in the financial statements only to the extent of sufficient
taxable temporary difference of ¥ 518.21 lacs as a matter of prudence

As at 31.03.2017

3 lacs

(1731.39)
2,205.85
474.46
183.60

658.06
As at 31.03.2017

3 lacs

(1731.39)
(1731.39)

710.06
23.55
1,459.19
13.05
2,205.85
474.46
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feuolt 7.9 TR-ae] wfkwataat
P 31.03.2018 Hﬂu‘ 31.03.2017 T'ﬁ'T
At o z ot |
¢ wE § T9e | Mem & forw e ugT e 20.41 23.23
M T R (Faer wagm) 995.17 1,140.06
FA 1,015.58 1,163.29
feoqutt 8 e
(=g o W 3R et agelt are ge)
31.03.2018 T 31.03.2017 T
feeT z ot § ; @rEt o
&%, e "l (T W) 11@1%[77{) 1,432.87 1,533.02
T, T A (T W geiEa) 94261 1,251.60
M. HE W (SRt AR ST W
2,403.64 1,811.36
Hoifehel)
T, TR Al (a8 @d W 91 U9 3R a9t W godifhd)
fafta s 4,941.66 3,217.14
GHISTF {990 31 384.92 417.79
A3IES 3T 5,808.62 5,913.93
T "o 9.80 21.03
11,145.00 9,569.89
T. G YER U9 30T (AN W) 11(72[‘]‘%!?({) 531.50 141.63
. T T, SR, S O, SR W o (e 926.58 974.29
R Heithd)
T. VA ERT TR SR T SR 2.69 2.34
. o=
ITR T (@ W) 21.47 59.17
A A (ST W) 42.41 60.12
63.88 119.29
17,448.77 15,403.42
=T : AT WRih & [T JEE 56.83 37.71
F 17,391.94 15,365.71
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NOTE 7. OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars
3 lacs 3 lacs
Lease rent advance for Warehouse in CSEZ 20.41 23.23
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 995.17 1,140.06
Total 1,015.58 1,163.29
NOTE 8. INVENTORIES
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars
3 lacs % lacs
a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost) 1,432.87 1,533.02
b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost) 942.61 1,251.60
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost) 2,403.64 1,811.36
d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products 4,941.66 3,217.14
Social Marketing Products 384.92 417.79
Outsourced Products 5,808.62 5,913.93
Goods-in transit 9.80 21.03
11,145.00 9,569.89
e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost) 531.50 141.63
f. Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials etc. (Valued at 926.58 974.29
cost)
g. Tools revalued and certified by management 2.69 2.34
h. Others
Gift items (at cost) 21.47 59.17
Stationery (at cost) 42.41 60.12
63.88 119.29
17,448.77 15,403.42
Less : Provision for Obselete Stock 56.83 37.71
Total 17,391.94 15,365.71
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femutt 9o fasiar ufidufaat-samr mitwt
P 31.03.20%8.?1?5 31.03.201’703?5
oIl | oIl |
g@gmﬁmmﬁwﬁﬁwm%%ﬁm
i, v e T 2,595.96 5,846.29
26,201.47 22,741.89
ST, T T T 28,797.43 28,588.18
ﬁmmm@w#@mm%mw
yfy, e gme o 413.23 10.23
ST, Sier wE T 24,060.54 26,279.28
Ty woE T 1,273.88 1,017.24
25,747.65 27,306.75
= : diery Fo & forw s 1,273.88 1,017.24
24,473.77 26,289.51
o 53,271.20 54,877.69

* U1 O, S RS SR TMeehT o ST I 3R A

feoutt 10. T T Ve gL
31.03.2018 T 31.03.2017 I
zomaEl | 7 AE |
(%) <ehl o | SHET
(i) =] @ 967.10 2,009.97
(ii) °h¥T Shiee @rd |
(iii) STAT @ §
() 3 WM W HH YRS ol Fiety SH @ § 2,861.10 320.58
(@) YR 3R TR & o Jiis A7l & &9 § @
o 0.5 0.45
ST
(iv) ¥ ¥ foraeit g1 @t § 7.54 12.46
(v) &I heT/E 169.04 108.34
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T 224.45 338.09
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NOTE 9.CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

e As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
% lacs % lacs

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the

date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good * 2,595.96 5,846.29

Unsecured, considered good 26,201.47 22,741.89
28,797.43 28,588.18

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the

date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good* 413.23 10.23

Unsecured, considered good 24,060.54 26,279.28

Considered Doubtful 1,273.88 1,017.24
25,747.65 27,306.75

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 1,273.88 1,017.24
24,473.77 26,289.51

Total 53,271.20 54,877.69

* Secured against Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee & Customer Deposit

NOTE 10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FIUSI As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
% lacs % lacs
(a) Balances with banks
(i) In Current accounts 967.10 2,009.97
(ii) In Cash credit accounts - -
(iii) In Deposit accounts
(a) In Term deposit accounts with less than 3 months maturity 2,861.10 320.58
(b) In Term deposits held for margin money for borrowings and guarantee 0.55 0.45
(iv) In EE Foreign currency accounts 7.54 12.46
(v) Cash/stamps on hand 169.04 108.34
Total 4,005.34 2,451.80
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above
In deposit accounts 224.45 338.09
Total 224.45 338.09
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feet @t § z A |
(%) wfayfd s e € w2
i, wier qeE T 392.14 517.97
P 20.54 20.54
30 T 412.68 538.51
(@) wHAE BT T eIt
i, wier qeE T 17.22 17.64
ST, v T 533.46 465.23
ey T T 1.7 1.17
551.85 484.04
= « Gy W7 iR GefiTEr B o 1.17 1.17
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(T) T AR T ST A 0.01
(=) =g Fur (Ferer)
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S, wier quE T 6,121.76 4,948.70
iferer T O 1,028.09 1,033.29
7,873.12 7,096.99
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NOTE 11. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

DS As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
% lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD
Secured, considered good 392.14 517.97
Deferred Rent 20.54 20.54
Sub Total 412.68 538.51
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.22 17.64
Unsecured, considered good 533.46 465.23
Considered Doubtful 1.17 1.17
551.85 484.04
Less: Allowance for doubtful loans and advances 117 117
Sub Total 550.68 482.87
(c) Interest accrued on FDR 0.01 -
(d) Derivative Asset (Net) - -
(e) Others (Advance to Creditors , Deposit to various agencies etc)
Secured, considered good 723.27 1,115.00
Unsecured, considered good 6,121.76 4,948.70
Considered Doubtful 1,028.09 1,033.29
7,873.12 7,096.99
Less: Allowance for doubtful loans and advances 1,028.09 1,033.29
Sub Total 6,845.03 6,063.70
Total 7,808.40 7,085.08
Note: Current Financial Assets - Others include amounts due from:
il AS AT 31.03.2018 AS AT 31.03.2017
3 lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.36 0.20
Other officers of the Company 52.02 45.47
Total 52.38 45.67
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feurutt 12. s =ey wfkwutat

faazor 31.03.2018 a=% 31.03.2017 a=%
; ol | o o
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NOTE 12. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
(a) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back

(b) Stock of DEPB Licence FMI & MEIS

(c) Receivable from Projects

(d) Prepaid Expenses

(e) Sales Tax Advances

Total

As at 31.03.2018
3 lacs

223.86

122.27

285.75

173.50

14.54

819.92

As at 31.03.2017
3 lacs

304.56

74.09

293.52

7.23

679.40
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feorutt 13. vaw U
et 31.03.2018 T 31.03.2017 9=
: o " 7 o |
() wferspa SR it
T ¢ 10/- & gfeeel 9ER-30,00,00,000 T 30,000.00 30,000.00
(@) SR} =i TE IR G
T ¢ 10/- & =feee 9r-29,04,15,000 G 29,041.50 29,041.50
(MET SR YO e WA S
T ¢ 10/- & =feee 9er-29,04,15,000 G 29,041.50 29,041.50
FeT 29,041.50 29,041.50
IR St T A e
31.03.2018 T 31.03.2017 9
IRRT HT WEAT  TUQ ATEl W WIORI &P GET w90 o |
HECCREA Tl
Putco)
31T Y (F&F 2 10/- % 3ifehd go) 300,000,000 30,000.00 300,000,000 30,000.00
iy v(vEE @ 10/- % 3ifhd god) 300,000,000 30,000.00 300,000,000 30,000.00
Wt fww o
31 IN(IAF 2 10/- % 3ifehd go) 29,04,15,000 29,041.50 29,04,15,000 29,041.50
3ifqq sy @ 10/- % 3ifhd goo) 29,04,15,000 29,041.50 29,04,15,000 29,041.50
afiEw R wEw
31 II(TH 2 10/- & 3iferd goor) 29,04,15,000 29,041.50 29,04,15,000 29,041.50
sifqw T(IEE 2 10/- * 3ifwd gox) 29,04,15,000  29,041.50 29,04,15,000 29,041.50

5%7 s IR U T TS WATHRE % WaWl o faaur

31.03.2018 T 31.03.2017 a=
AU E T A .
T IR B G i [ %Q et {07 Tl T
EIRKEG) He
U AT 29,04,15,000 100% 29,04,15,000 100%

196 aees e 2017-2018



¥

HLL Lifecare Limited

T o Innovating for Healthy Generations I N N EEEEEEEEE
NOTE 13. SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars
3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/-each - 30,00,00,000 Nos. 30,000.00 30,000.00
(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos. 29,041.50 29,041.50
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/-each - 29,04,15,000 Nos. 29,041.50 29,041.50

Total 29,041.50 29,041.50

Reconciliation of Share Capital

Description

No of Shares
Equity Share Capital
Authorized
Opening Balance (Face value of
210/- each) 3000,00,000
Additions -
Closing Balance (Face value of
210/- each) 3000,00,000
Issued
Opening Balance (Face value of
210/- each) 2904,15,000
Additions -
Closing Balance (Face value of
210/- each) 2904,15,000
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance (Face value of
210/- each) 2904,15,000
Additions -
Closing Balance (Face value of
210/- each) 2904,15,000

AS AT 31.03.2018

T lacs

30,000.00

30,000.00

29,041.50

29,041.50

29,041.50

29,041.50

AS AT 31.03.2017

No of Shares T lacs
3000,00,000 30,000.00
3000,00,0(;0 30,000.00_
2904,15,000 29,041.50
2904,15,0(;0 29,041.50_
2904,15,000 29,041.50
2904,15,0(;0 29,041.5_0

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of share-
holder Number of shares held

Govt. of India 2904,15,000

AS AT 31.03.2018

100%

% of Holding

Number of shares

AS AT 31.03.2017

held

2904,15,000 100%

% of Holding

Annual Report 2017-2018

197



¥ 4
7 7
W

TIUATA ATSheaR fafdes
e Wit & e aaeser NIEININININIEC:ECGLS

feoroft 14 = sfaaet
31.03.2018 a=% 31.03.2017 o=
feraon
; omEt o ; o "
() ATHIIT AHIRTOT ARFRTT 129.74 129.74
() W AT
9 3 25,821.25 seazlas
TS
Toderd (3R ST & of ufegutd) (30.45)
AR ST A S F S T IR (78.74)
Sre: o9 o g1 o fgeror § sifee & sfarkd
sifew oy 25,712.06 25,821.25
() A F T & foeror ®§ rfesie/awer
37 I (3,004.90)
Sre: oY Hierw e/ (1) (6,952.56) (2,539.03)
=T T
Y& ATHIT 387.07
TS W HT 78.80
sifam 9w (9,957.46) (3,004.90)
Fa 15,884.34 22,946.09
feuoft, o= sl
P 31.03.201’8 .FF:F 31.03.201.7 ‘FIEF
: A W ; o o
AT YSTER0T STRET0T 129.74 129.74
HERT STRE0 25,712.06 25,821.25
Ui 3t (9,957.46) (3,004.90)
F 15884.34 22946.09
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NOTE 14. OTHER EQUITY

R As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
% lacs % lacs

(a) Dividend Equalisation Reserve 129.74 129.74
(b) General reserve
Opening balance 25,821.25 25,821.25
Adjustments

Depreciation (RGCB asset) (30.45) -

Reversal of Advance from RGCB (78.74) -
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Closing balance 25,712.06 25,821.25
(c) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance (3,004.90) -
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year (6,952.56) (2,539.03)
Less: Dividend
Dividends paid - 387.07
Tax on Dividend - 78.80
Closing balance (9,957.46) (3,004.90)

Total 15,884.34 22,946.09
Note. Other Equity
R As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
% lacs % lacs
Dividend Capitalisation Reserve 129.74 129.74
General Reserve 25,712.06 25,821.25
Retained Earnings (9,957.46) (3,004.90)
Total 15884.34 22946.09
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feoroft 15 Tv-we] fasita 3gamd-sem

31.03.2018 &% 31.03.2017 7%
faaror —
; @t ® 3 @raEt &
(F) UfAYA U
At /T :
faett qa1 For —wfaea
reIfersh BT BT — Hiad 8,093.43 8,869.61
(T) Ay 3aR
Tal T5T Shall i ATE-3UR - 1,410.55
T 8,003.43 10,280.16

(i) o= dremTiors SUR % o1 Iwiet % oI & fqerur S ufque o dtemiiors Sur & Haig § &f T8 ufaufe |

31.03.2018 T 31.03.2017 9%
forarzor st & =T ufeew e wferee e
AE A zA@E W o " o o
Eeali i cibe
faael =1 07 B
(®)4f 3R THE Fl BISH HOA T 3TA )
UREUrE & v =
- W< O S oA (@)AEe # g | wifeas sy - 789.13
(1) ISToT, ey & A |ied 9fF _
ST & & Qi S |
FUT FUAT i

e ] - SR GfaH, Sape §
HIARE AR & S g, BTl H AL Aaieh
fafmior gfe ® For @ T 9o uREataEr %

T UE GG fmes W 9| 4,121.08 - 3,979.18
TTRpeT, TaeadRH % Wb 3R 9 W s
ECal
R UR & SHR W HUAT i AqUREuraE W
=11 AT TR
We % 31 e 6,928.60 - 7,001.61
T Hh T 11 3R WIRE & g iR T T
i sh
I oA s 11,049.68 - 11,769.92
El
= ARl e % 1 fRw 22876.26 @g (Tow A z 2847.57
TOH A 12 WA AR) 2. WRYd AT R 9T - 2 79.99 diig 2,956.25 - 2,900.31
SR TT | (fret 9 - 7 52.74 <)
12 HEM % A% 3 8,093.43 - 8,869.61
3T BT R S -
SheTaTT ST TE-3ER RIS ST FRT A 6,536.34 - 18,529.84
= : STIHIAD IUR 6,536.34 - 17,119.30
1,410.54
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NOTE 15. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
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As at 31.03.2018

% lacs

Particulars

(a) Secured Borrowings
Term loans:
Foreign currency loan -Secured -
Rupee Term Loan - Secured 8,093.43
(b) Unsecured Borrowings
Foreign currency Buyers Credit -
Total 8,093.43

As at 31.03.2017

3 lacs

10,280.16

8,869.61

1,410.55

(i) Details of terms of repayment for the long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured long-term borrowings:

AS AT 31.03.2018
Particulars Details of security* Secured  Unsecured

3 lacs 3 lacs
Term loans from banks:

Foreign Currency Loan

(a) First charge over the fixed assets of the
company excluding Land & Buildings.

- State Bank of India (1) Equitable Mortgage over the land at Noida. - -
(c) Equitable Mortgage as collateral over the
land with building at Poojappura.Trivandrum

Rupee Loan

First charge over movable assets purchased outof  4,121.08 -
the loan at Peroorkada Factory- Balaramapuram
. facility, Corporate R&D Centre at Akkulam,
- HDFC Bank Limited  Sanitary Napkin Manfacturing Unit at Kanagala.

Equitable mortgage over land and building at
Akkulam, Trivandrum

. Extension of charge over entire current assets of  6,928.60 -
- State Bank of India  the company on pari passu basis

Equitable Mortgage over the Noida Building

Phase Il & land and building at Irapuram
Total - Term loans 11,049.68
from banks

Lests:1 Z’ayab'tﬁ within 1 |nstallment Rs.2876.26 Lacs (Previous year- 2,956.25 -
R‘ee);ted arlrslogurfent Rs. 2847.57 Lacs) 2. Interest accrued & due- Rs.
Liabilities 79.99 Lacs (Previous year- Rs.52.74 Lacs)

Payable after 12 8,093.43
months

Other loans and

advances:

Buyers Credit Secured by Project Deposits 6,536.34 =

Less: Short Term 6,536.34
Borrowings

AS AT 31.03.2017

Secured

3 lacs

789.13

3,979.18

7,001.61

11,769.92

2,900.31

8,869.61

18,529.84
17,119.30

1,410.54

Unsecured

3 lacs

Note : Foreign Currency Buyers Credit are for Capital item procurement eligible for roll over upto three years subject to

availability, or else shall be converted into sanctioned Term Loan.
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- 34.817.12 38,563.93
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NOTE 16. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31.03.2018
T lacs
Deferred Income (AMC Charges) 44.66
Grant received in advance -
Total 44.66

Particulars

As at 31.03.2017

3 lacs
44.66
1,400.00
1,444.66

NOTE 17. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

As at 31.03.2018  As at 31.03.2017
Particulars
T lacs < lacs
(a) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit) - Secured
From State Bank of India 7,076.84 11,852.75
From Canara Bank 5,001.15 10.98
From HDFC Bank 4,226.22 4,145.06
Total 16,304.21 16,008.79
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks -Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank 4,407.99 43.42
From SBI 7,568.58 5,392.42
Total 11,976.57 5,435.84
(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credit 6,536.34 17,119.30
Total 34,817.12 38,563.93
Notes:
(i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings:
AS AT AS AT
Particulars Nature of security 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
% lacs % lacs
Loans repayable on demand Parri  passu charge over
from banks: current assets of the company.
SBI Equitable Mortgage as 7,076.84 11,852.75
collateral over the land with
Canara Bank building at  Poojappura, 5,001.15 10.98
HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards  State 4.226.22 4.145.06
Bank of India
Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured overdraft
From Canara Bank Secured by Project Deposits 4,407.99 43.42
From SBI 7,568.58 5,392.42
11,976.57 5,435.84
Other loans and advances:
Buyers Credit Secured by Project Deposits 6,536.34 18,529.84
Less: Long Term Borrowings - 1,410.54
6,536.34 17,119.30
Total 34,817.12 38,563.93
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NOTE 18. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars
T lacs 3 lacs
Trade payables:
for materials, services and expenses
- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 411.94 682.04
- Others 33,945.82 26,792.37
Total 34,357.76 27,474.41

NOTE 19. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

e As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
3 lacs < lacs
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below) 2,956.25 2,900.32
(b) Others
Advance from Customers/Clients 10,584.25 3,759.45
EMD & Security Deposits 4,501.46 3,888.50
Interest Accrued but not due 19.76 89.97
Fixed Deposit 0.10 0.10
Deferred Income (Installation charges) - 55.56
Derivative liability (Net) 3.12 116.02
Other Liabilities 9,915.45 7,097.22
Contributory Pension Scheme 178.39 36.91
Total 28,158.78 17,944.05

Note (i): Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 15 - Long-term borrowings for details of security )

AS AT 31.03.2018 AS AT 31.03.2017
Particulars
3 lacs 3 lacs

Term loans
Rupee Term Loan from HDFC Bank 2,487.75 1,989.59
Rupee Term Loan from SBI 468.50 121.60
Foreign Currency Term Loan from State Bank of India - 789.13

Total 2,956.25 2,900.32
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CURRENT PROVISIONS

(iii) Provision for gratuity

Particulars

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
(i) Provision for bonus and incentive

(ii) Provision for Performance related pay

(iv) Provision for group EL Premium

As at 31.03.2018

Total

T lacs

276.91
60.89
587.62

925.42

As at 31.03.2017
T lacs

225.68
121.78
407.87
150.36
905.69

NOTE 21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Year Ended 31.03.2018

Year Ended 31.03.2017

S.No Particulars
T lacs T lacs
(a) Sale of products 90,823.61 91,564.73
(b) Sale of services 14,247 .65 7,315.16
(c) Income from Contract 1,293.79 5,015.78
(d) Other operating revenues 1,173.22 1,539.31
Total 1,07,538.27 1,05,434.98
. Year Ended 31.03.2018 Year Ended 31.03.2017
Note Particulars
3 lacs 3 lacs
(i) Sale of products comprises
Sale of Contraceptive Products 31,315.00 37,770.00
Sale of Healthcare Products 11,872.00 16,170.53
Pharma Products 47,636.61 37,624.20
Sub Total 90,823.61 91,564.73
Sale of services 14,247.65 7,315.16
Income from Contract 1,293.79 5,015.78
Other operating revenues 1,173.22 1,539.31
Grand Total 1,07,538.27 1,05,434.98
Other operating revenues comprise:
SP;?enSwotlonal Subsidy on Saheli and Novex 306.81 48263
puty Rebate / Duty drawback / Other export 385.32 603.78
incentives
Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. 377.71 426.33
items
Sale of tender form 13.38 26.57
Total 1,173.22 1,539.31
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NOTE 22. OTHER INCOME

HLL Lifecare Limited
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Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Interest income (Refer Note (i) below) 24.29 104.51
(b) Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below) 1,292.20 931.22
Total 1,316.49 1,035.73
Year Ended Year Ended
Note Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
% lacs < lacs
(i) Interest income comprises:
a) On debentures 5.69 19.89
b) On Others 18.60 84.62
Total - Interest income 24.29 104.51
(i) Other non-operating income comprises:
Rental income from Staff quarters 3.38 4.16
Profit on sale of fixed assets 3.26 4.30
Insurance claims - 4.02
Excess provision / credits written back 15.36 38.95
Lease rent 349.37 196.67
Dividend Income (from subsidiary-HITES Ltd) 151.00 176.94
Exchange Fluctuation 241 11 229.40
Other Misc.Income 528.72 276.78
Total - Other non-operating income 1,292.20 931.22
Annual Report 2017-2018 209



¥ 4
7 7
W

feomut : 23 wur gam WIe @t AT

TIUATA ATSheaR fafdes
e Wit & e aaeser NIEININININIEC:ECGLS

31.03.2018 =t 31.03.2017 =t
oo |qETE qE |HTA a9
z A o z @t |
AR LIk 2,784.62 2,832.77
SICIRCCE 19,341.03 22,840.29
22,125.65 25,673.06
= ;3w =ie 2,375.48 2,784.62
T EAT HIS &I AR 19,750.17 22,888.44
U G H WM €
e Hed 10,418.53 11,257.37
s 2,735.08 2,909.28
TR |t 6,182.56 7,561.18
TUTERTT U 3Y-3hT S Tt TART 414.00 1,160.61
FA 19,750.17 22,888.44
feoqutt : 24 fagra wret @t @l
_— 3LO32018.H TG 31 032017 =t woer o
At o At o
R IS 40,671.05 39,313.17
eIk U e 3R 546.75 621.56
FA 41,217.80 39,934.73
feoqutt : 25 J9R wreR,wE W SR AR ©iw § aftadT
31.03.2018 %t AT & 31.03.2017 = woTA T
Gy : At o : At o
a¥ & fd | aﬁﬂ\iﬁ 8
TR AT 11,145.00 9,569.89
T It 2,403.64 1,811.36
13,548.64 11,381.25
T F IR § aqgEt
TR AT 9,569.89 3,228.16
SR W 1,811.36 2,338.72
11,381.25 5,566.88
Fraet(gfe) /@t (2,167.39) (5,814.37)
J: oR™ 7% o w9 # fead o R & forea g - 94.23
FA (2,167.39) (5,908.60)
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NOTE 23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
T lacs T lacs
Opening stock 2,784.62 2,832.77
Add: Purchases 19,341.03 22,840.29
22,125.65 25,673.06
Less: Closing stock 2,375.48 2,784.62
Cost of material consumed 19,750.17 22,888.44
Material consumed comprises:
Raw Materials 10,418.53 11,257.37
Chemicals 2,735.08 2,909.28
Packing Materials 6,182.56 7,561.18
Cost of quality and Sub contract Expense 414.00 1,160.61
Total 19,750.17 22,888.44
NOTE 24. PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
% lacs 3 lacs

Trading Products 40,671.05 39,313.17
Social Marketing Branded Products 546.75 621.56
Total 41,217.80 39,934.73

NOTE 25. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS
AND STOCK - IN - TRADE

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
T lacs T lacs
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 11,145.00 9,569.89
Work-in-progress 2,403.64 1,811.36
13,548.64 11,381.25
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 9,569.89 3,228.16
Work-in-progress 1,811.36 2,338.72
11,381.25 5,566.88
Net (increase) / decrease (2,167.39) (5,814.37)
Less: Write down of inventory to NRV shown as exceptional item - 94.23
TOTAL (2,167.39) (5,908.60)
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FeT 2,961.15 3,028.44
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Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
% lacs 3 lacs
(a) Salaries and incentives 11,370.22 12,094.30
(b) Contributions to -
Provident fund 1,097.67 1,163.05
New pension scheme 168.07 185.50
Gratuity and Earned Leave 687.43 332.53
Contribution to ESI 126.52 66.76
(c) Staff welfare expenses 1,813.73 1,359.10
Total 15,263.64 15,201.24
NOTE 27. FINANCE COSTS
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
T lacs T lacs
(a) Interest expense on:
(i) Cash credit 1,957.95 2,517.18
(i) Term Loan 776.39 227.50
(b) Other borrowing costs 226.81 283.76
Total 2,961.15 3,028.44
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NOTE 28. OTHER EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
% lacs % lacs

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses 3,964.79 4,721.38
Power & fuel charges 3,637.50 3,223.96
Freight & Other Selling Expenses 3,606.91 3,234.94
Travelling & Conveyance 1,307.84 1,729.21
Other Production expenses 3,621.13 2,206.53
Wages to Contract Labourers 2,079.59 2,127.74
Consultancy & Service Charges 7,423.68 3,712.55
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,718.58 1,573.30
Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances 287.62 207.08
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery 369.98 476.10
Postage & Telegram, Telephone 405.86 372.60
Research & Development Expenses 50.09 6.86
Corporate R&D Centre Expenses 511.37 634.14
Rent 499.41 282.70
Printing & Stationery 255.78 244.50
Repairs & maintenance of other assets 238.89 271.05
Water charges 241.47 161.58
Insurance charges 231.48 185.58
Bank Charges 149.66 106.11
Staff recruitment expenses 29.03 103.04
Rates & Taxes 31.92 126.12
Provision for obsolete stores written off 21.84 3.84
Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off 93.12 119.24
Training program expenses 40.80 49.44
Repairs & maintenance of buildings 73.66 116.56
Bad debt & advances written off 8.51 11.53
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 25.67 22.50
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 2.65 2.36
Loss on sale of scrapped assets 6.17 8.76
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 27.40 86.31
Royalty paid 6.78 -
Donation 0.06 0.32
Grant to HMA - 15.00

Total 30,969.24 26,142.92
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Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
T lacs ¥ lacs
(i) Payments to the auditors comprises
Audit fees 14.30 14.25
Tax Audit fees 4.60 2.43
Audit expenses 6.77 5.82
Total 25.67 22.50
Note 28 A Other expenses
(iii) Details of expenditure incurred on in house research and development (R&D) Facilities
in Lacs
_Included Approved R&D Facilities Unapprc_)Yt?d 44 Total
in notes to Facilities
Particulars financial
state- 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
ments
i) Capital expenditure
(a) Land
(b) Building
( c) Capital equipments(other than B B
Intangible Assets) 7.05 125.66 7.05 125.66
,(A(sj)sectgg)ital equipments(Intangible 195 9.28 B B 195 9.28
ii)Revenue Expenditure (net) - -
(a) Salaries/Wages 215.09 225.73 - - 215.09 225.73
(b)Material /Consumables/Spares 8.58 8.01 - - 8.58 8.01
( c) Utilities 31.13 38.65 - - 31.13 38.65
g)R%tB‘)” Expenses directly related 256.57  361.75 - - 25657 361.75
gﬁ")) (T:)t?g e gl (i o 51137  634.14 - - 51137 634.14
(iii) Total R&D Expenditure
(Total of (i) c and (ii) (e) 518.42 759.80 - - 518.42 759.80
(iv) Less: Amount received by R&D B B B B B B
facilities
g\dzeN(eitii)A_r(?‘?)unt of R &D expendi- 518.42 759.80 i i o —
NOTE 29. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
< lacs 3 lacs
Writedown of inventories to Net Realisable Value 94.23
Provision for Replacement (193.54) 380.45
Total (193.54) 474.68
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NOTE 30: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going
concern, while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product
and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and other long-term/short-
term borrowings. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes15,18
and 20) and total equity of the Company. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to
equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.

% lacs
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Borrowings 45,866.80 51,744 .41
Equity Capital 29,041.50 29,041.50
Reserves & Surplus 15,884.34 22,946.09
Equity 44,925.84 51,987.59
Debt/ Equity 1.02:1 0.99:1

B  Categories of Financial Instruments

Particulars
Financial Assets

a. Measured at Amortised Cost

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

i) Trade Receivables 53,271.20 54,877.69
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4,229.79 2,789.89
iii) Others 7,808.40 7,085.08

b. Mandatorily Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

Derivative Asset

Financial Liabilities

a. Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 45,866.80 51,744 .41
ii) Trade payables 34,357.76 27,474.41
iii) Other financial liabilities 28,155.66 17,828.03

b. Mandatorily Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

Derivative Liability 3.12 116.02
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C Financial risk management

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk
reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge
risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the board
of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, the use of financial derivatives, and
the investment of excess liquidity. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

D Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may
result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities expose it primarily to
the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively
manages its currency and interest rate exposures through its finance division and uses derivative instruments
such as forward contracts and currency swaps to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative
instruments is subject to limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.

E Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise. The Company actively manages its currency rate exposures through a centralised
treasury division and uses derivative instruments such as forward contracts and currency swaps to mitigate
the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits and regular monitoring by
appropriate levels of management.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are given in Note
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¥

F : Carrying value of Foreign Exchange Assets & Liabilities

As on March 31, 2018 (all amounts are in equivalent ? in lakhs):

Currency Gfozz ::xpo.
USsD 7,793.35
ELI 145.82
i 73.07
AED 37.86
CHF 408
GBP 0.94
el 8,056.02

As on March 31, 2017 (all amounts are in equivalent

Currency Gross expo-
sure
usD 19,018.08
EUR 219.32
GBP 30.45
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Liabilities Assets

Net overall

exposure on

Exposure Net liability Gross expo- Exposure Net liability the currency
hedged using exposure on sure P hedged using exposure on -net assets /
derivatives the currency derivatives the currency  (net liabilities)
1,527.76 6,265.59 2943.48 614.85 2,328.63 3,936.96
- 145.82 301.79 301.79 (155.97)
- 73.07 - 73.07
- 37.86 - 37.86
- 4.98 - 4.98
- 0.94 - - - 0.94

1,527.76 6,528.26 3,245.27 614.85 2,630.41 3,897.84

% in lakhs):
Liabilities Assets

Net overall

exposure on

Exposure Net liability Exposure Net liability the currency
. Gross expo- . -net assets /

hedged using exposure on sure hedged using exposure on liabiliti

derivatives the currency derivatives the currency (et liabilities)
4279.72 14,738.36 4524 11 9.69 4,514.42 10,223.94

- 219.32 1076.83 321.63 755.20 (535.88)

- 30.45 - - - 30.45
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies
may impact the Company’s revenues from its operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact
the Company’s cost of imports and cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing
the Company’s capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by
aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange
rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans ,where the denomination of the loan is in
a currency other than the functional currency of the lender or the borrower.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.
The following table details the Company’s sensitivity movement in the foreign currencies.

Zin Lacs

USD Impact
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Profit or Loss 128.26 204.48
Capital Work in Progress - -

EURO Impact
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Profit or Loss 3.12 10.72
Capital Work in Progress - -

GBP Impact
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Profit or Loss 0.02 0.61
Capital Work in Progress - -

JPY Impact

Profit or Loss

Capital Work in Progress
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H. Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate
borrowings and by the use of interest rate swap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align
with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are
applied.

I. Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both rupee and

foreign currency loans at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming that the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

The following table provides the possible impact in the profits for a change of 0.25% in interest rate, other factor
remaining constant.

Effect on Profit before Tax (% in

Borrowings lacs)

2017-18 2016-17
INR 27.62 7.48
USD - 0.09

J . Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas. The Company’s trade and other receivables consists of a large number
of customers, across geographies, hence the Company is not exposed to concentration risk. The Company
makes an allowance for doubtful debts using expected credit loss model and on a case to case basis.
Movement in expected credit loss allowance is provided in Note. 2.20

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the
total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin
money and other financial assets excluding equity investments.

K. Fair value Measurement

The management assesses that the fair value of Trade receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents, Bank Balances,
Security deposits receivable & paid , Loans and advances to employees, other non derivative current financial
assets, Trade payables, other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying value.

Annual Report 2017-2018 227



¥ 4

Y ®  pqueTe aTehha s
_'l e Wit & e aaeser NIEININININIEC:ECGLS

228

3. fafFafedt wifem

fofaatedt Sifem 39 Sifew Hut oo fodia e & [ &0 R I & Sooid Far § | fefsateer
G Yee T 329 &, TAT fotforateel st SReToT et 3R GHrvad hiT foh STUeTal & SR SYaAnT o
ferg fafy Sucted &1 ot roer stfues iy S Tt SToT iR =gt fafy & froer et &, S eteaas TR
Sifge w1 3ifehd AT & | HUAT foriE ST i SRS A g F T R Y TERI H 3UeAH
ffereh faehodt T oFTaR FARET ot st &

e, fafdafedt mfee

ffefEd aifeteht Terd Tehidl 3Tafe & WY 9ok TR-Fea fomia Saarst o fofu ot o 99 WiegeTs
URTeFT T faRoT St & | Aifetehid STog & STog ARIG, 59 TR ot BT A R whi STEvaehd & Fehdl

&, % 3R W foxiig 3amsti & IR < g Tl o SMUR W i T & |

faeror

wr= 31, 2018

JYR

T AR

= fomiia <
wr= 31, 2017

JYR

39 AR

311 forir ST

TR a9 H 3

37,773.37
34,357.76
28,155.66

41,464.25
27,474.41

17828.03

2Q5aNiH T 59 & & o

8,093.43

10,280.16

et W
o S et
T

45,866.80
34,357.76
28,155.66

51,744.41

27,474.41

17,828.03

IYes aie 2017-2018



¥ 4
N7 7
W
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Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, which carry minimal mark to market risks. The
Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to

maintaining financial flexibility.

M. Liquidity Table

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Particulars

March 31,2018

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
March 31,2017

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Rinlacs

. Duein2ndto  Due after Carrying

D D Eey 5th year 5th year amount
37,773.37 8,093.43 45,866.80
34,357.76 34,357.76
28,155.66 28,155.66
41,464.25 10,280.16 51,744.41
27,474.41 27,474.41
17,828.03 17,828.03
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Note 31: Employee Benefit Expenses ( Refer Note 2.32)

1.1 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

Gratuity
Discount rate 7.50% 8.00%
Expected rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

Compensated Absences
Discount rate 7.50% 8.00%

Expected rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

1.2 The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined

benefit plans is as follows:
As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

X lacs T lacs

Gratuity

Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,464.60 5,250.08

Fair value of plan assets 4,805.88 4,852.10

Insurance benefits 9.19 9.89

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (funded) 667.91 407.87
Compensated Absences

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,410.15 1,772.10

Fair value of plan assets 1,491.15 1,622.47

Insurance benefits 0.71 0.73

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (funded) (80.29) 150.36

Note: The valuation is after considering the amendments as per Govt. of India Notification No.S.O. 1420 (E) dated 29"
March 2018
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1.3 Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:

As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

¥ lacs 3 lacs
Gratuity
Opening defined benefit obligation 5,250.08 5,043.76
Current service cost 218.38 222.2
Interest cost 394.08 403.5
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 384.19 154.4
Benefits paid (782.13) (573.78)
Closing defined benefit obligation 5,464.60 5,250.08
Compensated Absences
Opening defined benefit obligation 1,772.09 1,629.07
Current service cost 278.72 295.39
Interest cost 132.91 130.33
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (393.02) (153.15)
Benefits paid (380.55) (129.54)
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,410.15 1,772.09

1.4 Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

% lacs % lacs
Gratuity
Opening fair value of plan assets 4,852.10 4,701.23
Expected return on plan assets 3565.19 382.32
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets = =
Contributions 380.72 342.33
Benefits paid (782.13) (573.78)
Closing fair value of plan assets 4,805.88 4,852.10
Compensated Absences
Opening fair value of plan assets 1,622.47 1,457.84
Expected return on plan assets 111.99 122.92
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets = =
Contributions 137.24 171.25
Benefits paid (380.55) (129.54)
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,491.15 1,622.47
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1.5 The Company funds the cost of the gratuity expected to be earned on a yearly basis to Life Insurance
Corporation of India, which manages the plan assets.

The actual return on plan assets is as under
As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

3 lacs 3 lacs
Gratuity 355.19 382.36
Compensated Absences 111.99 122.92

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period.

As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

X lacs 3 lacs

Gratuity

If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/lower, the defined benefit

obligation would be as under

decrease by 100 basis points 4,942.73 4,748.70

increase by 100 basis points 5,936.20 5,703.16

If the expected salary increases/decreases by 100 basis points, the defined

benefit obligation would be as under

decrease by 100 basis points 4,942.73 4,741.34

increase by 100 basis points 5,936.20 5,711.03
Compensated Absences

If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/lower, the defined benefit

obligation would be as under

decrease by 100 basis points 1,275.48 1,602.86

increase by 100 basis points 1,5631.84 1,925.03

If the expected salary increases/decreases by 100 basis points, the defined

benefit obligation would be as under

decrease by 100 basis points 1,273.50 1,600.38

increase by 100 basis points 1,533.96 1,927.69

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous year.
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NOTE 32 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONTINGENT ASSETS (REF 2.33)

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(I) Contingent Liabilities

(i)

(i)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

Income Tax

(a) Income Tax demands against the Company not acknowledged
as debt and not provided for in respect of which the Company
is in appeal and exclusive of the similar matters in respect of
pending assessments and interest.

(b) Sales Tax & Service Tax Claims against the Co. not
acknowledged as debt

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Guarantee

(a) Company'’s guarantee for Employees Housing Loan for
Officers

(b) Company’s guarantee for Employees Housing Loan for
others

Bank Guarantees to Govt. Departments. (Net of Margin Money)
Bank Guarantees to others(net of margin money)

Corporate Guarantees issued

Letter of Credits (net of Margin Money)

Provision for Customs Duty

Expected replacement for export order.

TOTAL

() Commitments

(0]

(i)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
Capital Account and not provided for (Net of advances)

Pending rebate claim for which appeals filed

TOTAL

(lll) Contingent Assets

Arbitration award in favour of the company in the legal case with state Innovations
in Family Planning Services Agency (SIFPSA)

Notes

2017-18

3 lacs

268.01

3,175.07

12,440.25

6,961.30
115.92
7,394.94
338.72
43.38
1,115.49

31,853.09

268.59

385

271.94

2,684.36

2016-17

3 lacs

295.15

90.41

11,805.54

0.38

0.18

6,437.03
902.10
3,152.72
1,199.26
40.68
505.71

24,429.16

1,854.38

125

1,856.33

2,684.36

Contingent liability has been calculated as Principal plus Interest @ 12% p.a. The claims made by the claimants have
ranged from 8-24%. However, keeping in view the statutory interest levies like Income Tax and principle of Natural
Justice, the rate of interest for all claims have been taken @ 12% p.a. in cases where the interest is above 12% p.a.

Ministry has recently sought recovery from HLL towards rate difference, amounting ¥19.56 crore towards condoms for
the years 2012-13 & 2013-14, % 21.28 crores towards condoms for the year 2015-16, ¥ 5.22 crore towards Emergency
Contraceptive Pills for the years 2008-09 to 2011-12 and T 5.87 Crore towards pregnancy test kit for the year
2014-15. Since the conditions of cabinet order to finalize the rates in the respective financial year had not been compiled
by the MOHFW and the accounts of the company pertaining to these year have been finalized and closed. The company
has raised objections against the recovery and in view of the above no provision has been considered in the books
of accounts. However this has been disclosed in contingent liability under the head claims against the company not
acknowledged as debt.
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NOTE : 33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE ( REFER NOTE. 2.34)

Disclosure in respect of related party pursuant to Ind AS 24

Description of Relation Names
Subsidiaries HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL)

Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL)

HLL InfraTech Services Limited (HITES)

HLL Medipark Ltd (HML)

HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited (Since 01/08/2017)
Joint Venture Life Spring Hospital Private Ltd (LSH)
Associates Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT)

HLL Management Academy (HMA)
HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society

A. Chairman & Managing Directors,Whole Time Directors, Compa-
ny Secretary & CFO

Dr. Rakesh Kumar Vats, Chairman & Managing director
(C&MD)-(From 08/11/2017)

Shri .R.P. Khandelwal- & Director (Finance) (Superannuated on
31-05-2018)

Shri. T. Rajasekar- Director (Marketing)
Shri. E A Subramaniam Director (Technical & Opeartional)
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Shri. P.Sreekumar- Company Secretary & SVP(HR)

Shri. R.Ganesan - SVP(F) & CFO
B. Independent Directors

Ms. Aradhana Johri

C. Government Nominee Directors
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Shri. Lav Agarwal

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel % 123.94 lacs ( Previous period - ¥ 173.1 lacs)
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feuguft : 33 weifm Ut wwStwTT (fewutt 2.34 3)

e 42 T TH 24 % AR G W F AR § TR fomr o 2O
1. foret
TEUATA 14 fAties (T st Uer) 100% 18.61 -
g ol URaR s W = (TIeTRadieT) 100% 37067  429.94
2. ferent o=
feqedm viee URER faisH Jisme =g (TaueuweT) 100% . -
TEUAUA SR faee (T & Teh) 100% = 0.09
3. e o
M orea URaR FHasH Wee = (TaueuRddier) 100% 47.06 44.82
TEUANS Hieure fofes (T= TF Tel) 100% 11.12 -
TITATS TR T oAt e (312eH) 100% 297.35 147 45
4, JRTHIT /e
THUATA SE1ee [ardes (U9 s TeT) 100% 32.76 77.88
THUATS SR T fAfies (212eq) 100% 9.00 9.00
5. fes=r ==
TATREHIEAT 3T Ugde TS (Ter ug ue) 50% - 10.76
6. AT AT =T
THAUATS ek feAmee (T S Ter) 100% 29.23
e TSETEifesRd T wHREched Mmee (S T b Ter) 74% 47.19
TEUUe Hieurh fafee (Te UH Ue) 100% 53.90
TIUATA Jee SThEH! (T UH U) 100% 51.04
7. I =
g ol URaR FEsH Weee = (TaeTRadieT) 56.77 28.66
TATEHET AT Ugae fAtds(Ta g u) 50% 3.69 -
TIUATS SEieeh fAaraee (Ta & Uer) 100% 29.44 12.52
e Geamaiiesd ThHgehed fates (S T ot uet) 74% 334.36 707.58
TEUANS dieure feafaes (W= U5 Tel) 100% 4.47 69.70
TIUEATE YeE SThEH! (U9 U ©) 1.74 -
TIUATA AIG F oY) Ve et feties 100% 5.84
TIUEITET SRS Qarad fefies (areed) 100% 262.86 -
TS e &Y Wrarger 100% - 20.00
8. fafay =R
fegeam ora URaR FHaSH Wee = (TaueuRdier) 100% 341.38 318.01
TATEHET AT e faes(Ta ud ue) 50% 22.02 27.61
TAUATA e AHes (TT s Tel) 100% 18127  315.01
e etemifesRd Mo fames (S T ot ver) 74% 52.97 =
TEUeUe Afeurh fafies (Te Uy uer) 100% 188.90 43.51
TIUEIUE SRICS Qe fafes (areed) 100% 181.87  1,403.74
TEUCIA AIG J 19 T&T STuare felfies 100% 14.84 -
TEUONS dieure fafaes (Y= T Tel) 100% 175.36 128.10
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NOTE : 33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE ( REFER NOTE. 2.34)

Significant Related Party Transactions

Tin lacs
Sr. No. Disclosure in respect of related party pursuant to Ind AS 24 Control 2017-2018 2016-2017
1 Sales
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% 18.61 -
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT) 100% 370.67 429.94
2 Sales Commission
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust 100% - -
(HLFPPT)
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% - 0.09
3 Rental Income
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT) 100% 47.06 44.82
HLL Medipark Ltd (HML) 100% 11.12 -
HLL InfraTech Services Limited (HITES) 100% 297.35 147.45
4 Consultancy/Service
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% 32.76 77.88
HLL InfraTech Services Limited (HITES) 100% 9.00 9.00
5 Debenture Interest
Life Spring Hospital Private Ltd (LSH) 50% - 10.76
6 Salaries & Allowances
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% 29.23 -
Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) 74% 47.19 -
HLL Medipark Ltd (HML) 100% 53.90 -
HLL Management Academy (HMA) 100% 51.04 -
7 Other Expenses
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT) 56.77 28.66
Life Spring Hospital Private Ltd (LSH) 50% 3.69 -
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% 29.44 12.52
Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) 74% 334.36 707.58
HLL Medipark Ltd (HML) 100% 4.47 69.70
HLL Management Academy (HMA) 1.74 -
HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited 100% 5.84 -
HLL InfraTech Services Limited (HITES) 100% 262.86 -
Pratheeksha Charitable Society 100% - 20.00
8 Sundry Debtors
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT) 100% 341.38 318.01
Life Spring Hospital Private Ltd (LSH) 50% 22.02 27.61
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% 181.27 315.01
Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) 74% 52.97 -
HLL Medipark Ltd (HML) 100% 188.90 43.51
HLL InfraTech Services Limited (HITES) 100% 181.87 1,403.74
HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited 100% 14.84 -
HLL Management Academy (HMA) 100% 175.36 128.10
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9, vt § faer
TAEHIENT ST gae s (T T Te) 50% 950.76  950.76
TS SR thes (T S Ter) 100%  27,489.00 27,489.00
e TeemEeR TR feshed fafbes (S T o wet) 74% 708.75  708.75
THUATS Aieaeh fefee (T U7 Tol) 100% 10.01 10.01
TIUATA AIG F TOe] Ve STt fettiee 100% 1.00 -
T SRR WA e () 100% 5.00 5.00
10. = FaATE
T G TR e (ST e 74% 219.34  374.13
A T T ST 100% 0.83 0.47

THH Heifed HeaTd St Aeeaqut A e e o
FR KU 63 T8 R8T o ST, ST W 3T TRPRT Feitad TS % WY o3 ¥, T | T wnier € it
=1 e Hifa T T |

THN HT AW : YR WHN (g AN T WEHN)

-3 it UHa
I 3R Farewt i oot
I I
fafarer e
1 AT
T AR I AW, W ThR § Haifed &l 8, & o1 § HUAr & AGHT It & QR w6 ¥ e fwa
T T | HSeT i TWE YEHl ARG @l TR RO Wer

e ded @t WE | =t AR i gER) Rae G € |
FA w.aME T HUA
TR AT
FF H.00452509
<AR.F. T E T TH 3.0.gsH0aA ot sfiame TS wu. amw i
Freel U TEY R TUR R (TRt T G T s e (Toe) TERR
[fe: 01625253] TS ) TN e (T T TE) e g o e HEET . 216979
[fe: 06818313] [T 5875] [T 26723]
= : T feoent
arg : 13-08-2018
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9 Investment in Shares
Life Spring Hospital Private Ltd (LSH) 50% 950.76 950.76
HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) 100% 27,489.00 27,489.00
Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) 74% 708.75 708.75
HLL Medipark Ltd (HML) 100% 10.01 10.01
HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited 100% 1.00 -
HLL InfraTech Services Limited (HITES) 100% 5.00 5.00
10 Other Liabilities
Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) 74% 219.34 374.13
HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society 100% 0.83 0.47

Government related entities where significant transactions carried out

Apart from transactions reported above, the company has transactions with other Government related entities, which
includes but not limited to the following:

Name of Government: Government of India (Central and State Government)
Nature of Transactions:

+ Sale of Products and Services

*» Other Expenses

* Sundry Debtors

* Other Liabilities

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Company’s business on terms comparable to
those with other entities that are not government related.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Vide our report of even date attached
For K. Varghese & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 004525S

Dr. RK. Vats IAS E.A. Subramanian P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Sam Varghese
Chairman & Director (T&O) Company Secretary & SVP(CAS) SVP(F) & CFO Partner

Managing Director  [DIN: 06818313] [FCS: 5875] [FCA : 26723] Membership No:216979
[DIN : 01625253]

New Delhi

13-08-2018
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feoroft 34; ¥ T TH-108 W= T & AT Ueheleh{uT

(femoft 2.35 3)
faamor 3 oar |
T G MRS TR Ta wt TRt T
T& e
et Tt @R e 33,216.13 22,824.78 45,009.83 6,802.81 1,07,853.56
I AT o 1,001.20
BT 1,08,854.76
F & g Ao mifRtas @ TE wt q@&qﬁm‘a“"g T
= 3R F F g3 /A (1,475.28) (1,200.16) 810.04 1,449.71 (415.69)
- = 1,238.57 579.08 396.36 450.85 2,664.86
-3 a3 3,362.70
Sre- o STfaaE= 3 (34.76) (8.94) - (43.70)
X % I3 AH/E (2,748.61) (1,788.18) 413.68 998.87 (6,486.94)
< uf@ise
e Ot TR e et T e e T
aTeted aTEet UREutET () 16,285.23 8,580.91 1,856.38 551.94 27,274.47
areifed =] aRETET (@) 27,642.17 8,681.90 23.958.95  31,901.09 92,184.11
(& + @) 43,927.40 17,262.81 25,815.33  32,453.03 1,19,458.58
arEifed =] SaaT 27,381.90 14,628.88 3348272  16,205.48 91,698.99
T Gt aTmeie 16,545.50 2,633.93 (7,667.39)  16,247.55 27,759.59
e O o StfateE 3fe (17,166.25)
Fel ﬁ?iﬁﬁ 1‘13% 44,925.84
2. et WE EAT-wimifes e
arq 1,02,331.08
ORI & el 6,523.68
1,08,854.76
aRA 44,925.84
ORT & X =
44,925.84
v Heer @t WE A T ARG i ARt RO e € |
Fl h.A(E QUL AT
TR SRR
Y .004525TF
AN &.99 3 T U 3.0.gsHOIA ot sfiHr AR TOI .U, |m e
ez Ue Ve Feveh T9RY Gt clGEmical oAt Hiee T TS 3urezrer (fare) AERR
[fe: 01625253] LR EIE)) AN 3T (T U TH) e 7 o SRt [ 9. 216979
[fe: 06818313] [TFdTE: 5875] [TwET: 26723]

I ;2 fgoett
ar’@ : 13-08-2018
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NOTE- 34: DISCLOSURE UNDER IND AS-108 SEGMENT REPORTING

(REFER NOTE 2.35)

Particulars 3 lacs
Segment Revenue Contraceptives ~ Health Care Pharma l:::: i(::t:s& Total
Net Sales & Services 33,216.13 22,824.78 45,009.83 6,802.81 107,853.56
Other Unallocable Revenue 1,001.20
Total 108,854.76
Profit before Tax Contraceptives Health Care Pharma F;}r:j: ;::s& Total
Profit/Loss before Interest & Tax (1,475.28) (1,200.16) 810.04 1,449.71 (415.69)
Less:- Interest 1,238.57 579.08 396.36 450.85 2,664.86
Less: Other unallocable expenditure 3,362.70
Add:-Other unallocable income (34.76) (8.94) - (43.70)
Profit/Loss before tax (2,748.61) (1,788.18) 413.68 998.87 (6,486.94)
Capital Employed Contraceptives ~ Health Care Pharma F;':Z: icct:s& Total
Allocated Fixed Assets (a) 16,285.23 8,580.91 1,856.38 551.94 27,274.47
Allocated Current Assets (b) 27,642.17 8,681.90 23,958.95 31,901.09 92,184.11
(atb) 43,927.40 17,262.81 25,815.33 32,453.03 119,458.58
Allocated Current Liabilities 27,381.90 14,628.88 33,482.72 16,205.48 91,698.99
Capital Employed Allocation 16,545.50 2,633.93 (7,667.39) 16,247.55 27,759.59
Unallocable portion of Capital 17,166.25
Employed
Total Capital Employed 44,925.84
2. Secondary Segment Information - Geographical
Revenue
India 102,331.08
Outside India 6,523.68
108,854.76
Capital Employed
India 44,925.84
Outside India -
44,925.84
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Vide our report of even date attached
For K. Varghese & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0045258
Dr. R.K. Vats IAS E.A. Subramanian P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Sam Varghese
Chairman & Director (T&O) Company Secretary & SVP(CAS) SVP(F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director  [DIN: 06818313] [FCS: 5875] [FCA:26723] Membership No:216979
[DIN : 01625253]
New Delhi
13-08-2018
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feoqutt 35 : g & (fewudt 2.35 3=)

A T | WA AT H .
31 @, 2018 31 ==, 2017
RS w1 GATE a9 w1 GATE a9
fioe aut | Hefta qaEs/ (hise) - fFaa
3T (3.06) 91.91
T hiee UT - 26.82
(3.06) 118.73
AT HT
ey I § Geirad 474.46 (1,640.04)
474.46 (1,640.04)
N AR A | wEEE R T Fe aE W A 471.40 (1,521.31)
a9 &% {0 i oy | Her freng Rl TR o W =
T F ud @y (6,486.94) (4,059.51)
e Ty 30.900% 34.608%
T FET o STER 3T F 2 - )
SE T Rw T s e 45.28 242.67
TR X I 2T 6T T (567.91) (466.78)
TR 3R U T T 549.63 824.04
AT T 138.35 (108.98)
SR U S Gl T TG (266.26) (885.45)
IRt <t fesht 61y 556 6.82
T T TS (104.81) (59.00)
31T 3 R J9E 373.66 289.84
3l 173.48 (156.84)
T W % IR @ (6,313.46) (4,216.35)
A TR T A e e (474.46) 1,640.04
Y AR T | qewe fRT U ST (474.46) 1,640.04
A ANF AT ¥ qgA R MU S wW
STRAfTa &
feifea oy i & O A (3.06) 0.43
F AR A | TEEH RT T FA A F (3.08) 043
AT ®T REYat/daaret &1 faversor ;-
=
e 31 wrd, 2017 31 wrd, 2018 %eg? s :E
IR FT (IFAT0)/aREufaa & daer |
o ¥ SR e qRaET (1,731.39) (1,269.74) 461.66 -
T SR S FR TR R S 2,205.85 1,269.74 1,534.67 (3.06) -
ST R e (32 e uE) 183.60 183.60
3t 658.06 183.60 1,996.33 (3.06) -
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NOTE 35 INCOME TAXES (REFER NOTE 2.35)

Income tax relating to continuing operations Zlacs
Current Tax Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Adjustments/(credits) related to previous years-Net
Income Tax (3.06) 91.91
Mat Credit Entitlement - 26.82
(3.06) 118.73
Deferred Tax
474.46 (1,640.04)
Total Income Tax expense recognised in Profit & Loss 471.40 (1,521.31)
Income Tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit:
Profit before Tax (6,486.94) (4,059.51)
Income Tax Rate 30.900% 34.608%
Effect of Expenses not allowed 45.28 242.67
Effect of Income not taxable (567.91) (466.78)
Effect of Depreciation and Amortisations 549.63 824.04
Effect of Provisions 138.35 (108.98)
Effect of RND Expenses (266.26) (885.45)
Effect of Sale of Assets 5.55 6.82
Effect of Deductions (104.81) (59.00)
Effect of other income 373.66 289.84
Total 173.48 (156.84)
Loss as per Income Tax (6,313.46) (4,216.35)
Effect of deductible temporary differences (474.46) 1,640.04
Income Tax recognised in Profit & Loss (474.46) 1,640.04
Income Tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred Tax
Re measurement of defined benefit obligation (3.06) 0.43
Total Income Tax recognised in other comprehensive income (3.06) 0.43
Analysis of Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities:-
oS 217 rc St et oo Gt Unidox
sive Income credits
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets in relation to:
PPE and Intangible Assets (1,731.39) (1,269.74) 461.66 - -
Expenditure allowed upon Payments and un- 2,205.85 1,269.74 1,534.67 (3.06) -
used tax losses
Unused Tax Credits (Mat Credit Entitlement) 183.60 183.60
Total 658.06 183.60 1,996.33 (3.06) -
Ann